PN
NG

Ararat Rural City

MINUTES

UNSCHEDULED COUNCIL MEETING
Tuesday 14 October 2025

Held in the Council Chambers, Shire Offices
(Livestreamed)

Commenced at 6.00pm

Council:

Cr Jo Armstrong (Mayor)
Cr Rob Armstrong

Cr Peter Joyce

Cr Teli Kaur

Cr Luke Preston

Cr Bob Sanders

Cr Bill Waterston

- PO Box 246, Ararat, Vic 3377 = 03 5355 0200 - council@ararat.vic.gov.au ararat.vic.gov.au



mailto:council@ararat.vic.gov.au

N
<

Ararat Rural City

A recording of this meeting is being made for the purpose of verifying the accuracy of the minutes of the
Council Meeting.

The recording is being streamed live via Facebook, to improve transparency between council and the community
and give more people the opportunity to view what decisions are being made. You do not require a Facebook
account to watch the live broadcast, simply enter www.facebook.com/araratruralcitycouncil into your address bar.

Recordings of Council Meetings (excluding closed sessions) are made available on Council’'s website.


http://www.facebook.com/araratruralcitycouncil
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PRESENT: Cr J Armstrong, Cr Rob Armstrong, Cr Peter Joyce, Cr Teli Kaur, Cr Luke Preston, Cr Bill
Waterston, Phuong Au - Deputy Chief Executive Officer, Chandra Willmott - Chief Operating Officer,
Thomas Duncan - Theatre Technical Officer

SECTION 1 - PROCEDURAL MATTERS

1.1 LIVE STREAMING

Council is keen to engage with members of the community and live streams the formal Council
Meetings to make them accessible. The stream is available to view on Council's Facebook page
from 6pm and on Council’s website following the Council Meeting.

1.2 TRADITIONAL ACKNOWLEDGEMENT/OPENING PRAYER/COUNCILLORS PLEDGE

Traditional acknowledgement - CR R ARMSTRONG
We acknowledge the traditional owners of the land on which we meet today, and pay our respects
to their elders, past, present and emerging.

Opening Prayer - CR J ARMSTRONG

Almighty God, we humbly ask you to help us, as elected Councillors of the Ararat Rural City Council.
Guide our deliberations. Prosper what is your will for us, to your honour and glory and for the
welfare and benefit of the people whom we serve in the Ararat Rural City.

Councillors Pledge - CR JOYCE
We will faithfully and impartially carry out and exercise the functions, powers, authorities and

discretions invested in us under the Local Government Act 2020 and any other Act to the best of
our skill and judgement.

1.3 APOLOGIES
RECOMMENDATION

That the apology of Cr Bob Sanders be accepted.

MOVED CR WATERSTON
SECONDED CR R ARMSTRONG

That the apology of Cr Bob Sanders be accepted.
No Councillors spoke for or against the motion.

CARRIED 6/0
5223/25

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The apology of CEO Dr Tim Harrison was acknowledged.
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1.4 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES
RECOMMENDATION
That the Minutes of the Council Meeting held on 30 September 2025 be confirmed.

MOVED CR JOYCE
SECONDED CR KAUR

That the Minutes of the Council Meeting held on 30 September 2025 be confirmed.

No Councillors spoke for or against the motion.

CARRIED 6/0
5224/25
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1.5 DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

A Councillor who has a conflict of interest in a matter being considered at a Council meeting at
which he or she:

1 s present must disclose that conflict of interest by explaining the nature of the conflict of
interest to those present at the Council meeting immediately before the matter is considered;
or

2 intends to be present must disclose that conflict of interest by providing to the Chief
Executive Officer before the Council meeting commences a written notice:

(@) advising of the conflict of interest;
(b) explaining the nature of the conflict of interest; and
(c) detailing, if the nature of the conflict of interest involves a Councillor’s relationship with or
a gift from another person, the:
e name of the other person;
e nature of the relationship with that other person or the date of receipt, value and type
of gift received from the other person; and
e nature of that other person’s interest in the matter,
and then immediately before the matter is considered at the meeting announcing to those
present that he or she has a conflict of interest and that a written notice has been given to the
Chief Executive Officer under this sub-Rule.

The Councillor must, in either event, leave the Council meeting immediately after giving the
explanation or making the announcement (as the case may be) and not return to the meeting
until after the matter has been disposed of.

There were no Declarations of Conflict of Interests received.
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SECTION 2 - REPORTS REQUIRING COUNCIL DECISION
2.1 PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RESPONSIBLE OFFICER: CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

DEPARTMENT: CEO’S OFFICE
REFERENCE: 24257

OFFICER DIRECT OR INDIRECT CONFLICT OF INTEREST:
Officers providing advice to Council must disclose any conflict of interest.

No person involved in the preparation of this report has a conflict of interest requiring disclosure.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Financial Statements and Performance Statement (the statements) have been prepared for the period
ended 30 June 2025. The Victorian Auditor-General is required to audit the statements but cannot issue
his report unless Council approves the statements.

The Audit and Risk Committee were presented with a draft version of the statements on 9 September 2025,
however knowing that additional revaluation adjustments were still required, they placed the motion on
hold to recommend that Council authorises Councillor Jo Armstrong, Councillor Bob Sanders and Dr Tim
Harrison to certify the Financial Statements and the Performance Statement in their final form. A copy of
the current draft statements have been circulated to committee members on 9 October 2025 for their
review.

DISCUSSION

Pursuant to the Local Government Act 2020 (the Act) Council is required to give “in principle approval” to
the 2024/25 Financial Statements and Performance Statement and submit the statements to the auditor
for reporting on the audit.

The Act recognises that further changes may be made to the statements and therefore Council must
authorise two Councillors to certify the Financial Statements and Performance Statement in their final
form after any changes recommended by the auditor have been made.

The Auditor-General's agent conducted the offsite audit between August and October 2025.
Key Financial information:

Financial Statements - Income Statement

The Comprehensive Income Statement measures how well Council has performed from an operating
nature. It reports revenue and expenditure from the activities and functions undertaken, with the net
effect being a surplus or deficit. Capital expenditure is excluded from this statement, as it is reflected in
the Balance Sheet. Depreciation is included in this statement, as depreciation is the accounting method
of allocating the cost of an asset over its useful life.

The draft Comprehensive Income Statement shows total income in 2025 of $37.526 million compared
with $27.347 million in 2024. Rates & Charges income increased by $0.210 million, Government Grants
for operations increased by $11.197 million, and Government Grants for capital works decreased by
$0.852 million.

Council has delivered a net zero percent rate rise for the seven year period up to 2024-2025. Total
income from rates increased by only 1.17%. The income from general rates and municipal charges
increased with movements of properties between differential classes and new building works. Some of
the increase has resulted from additional waste management charges resulting from the expanded
kerbside collection area now being serviced.
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Council received several grants that were not budgeted including the following:

. Council Support Fund - Pomonal Bushfire Recovery - $0.750 million
. Tatyoon Oval Upgrade Grant - $0.250 million

. Disaster Recovery Funding (Fires Feb 2024) - $0.160 million

. Back Bolac Road Reconstruction - $0.228 million

Total expenses in 2025 were $36.369 million compared with $33.973 million in 2024, an increase of
$2.396 million. A breakdown of expenses reveals an increase in employee costs of $0.268 million.

There has been an increase of $0.627 million in materials and services to deliver the outcomes for the
additional operating grants and to complete projects carried forward from the previous financial year.

Depreciation expenses have increased by $1.311 million as a result of the revaluation completed as at 1
July 2024.

The net result for 2025 was a surplus of $1.157 million compared with a deficit of $6.626 million in 2024.
The revaluation of property and infrastructure assets at 1 July 2024 and indexation at 30 June 2025 have
resulted in an increase in asset values of $130.244 million.

Financial Statements - Balance Sheet
The Balance Sheet is one of the main financial statements and it reports Council’s assets, liabilities and

equity at a given date, in this case 30 June 2025. Comparative figures have been provided as at 30 June
2024.

Council’s current assets have increased by $6.246 million, from $11.732 million as at 30 June 2024 to
$17.978 million as at 30 June 2025. Cash and cash equivalents have increased by $11.792 million and
other financial assets have decreased by $3.040 million, whilst current trade and other receivables
decreased by $2.146 million. Rate debtors have increased by $0.146 million.

Total liabilities have increased by $7.687 million from $8.777 million in 2024 to $16.464 million in 2025.

Financial Statements - Cash Flows

The Statement of Cash Flows shows how changes in the Balance Sheet and Income Statement affect Cash
and Cash Equivalents, and breaks down the analysis to operating activities, investing activities and
financing activities.

The Cash Flow Statement shows a net increase in cash and cash equivalents of $11.792 million compared
with a net decrease of $8.408 million in 2024. Cash and cash equivalents excludes funds transferred to a
term deposit investment which are classified as an other financial asset.

The Cash Flow Statement shows net cash provided by operating activities was $21.875 million in 2025
compared with $2.048 million in 2024, representing an increase of $19.827 million. This is largely due to
an increase in operating grants of $15.611 million with the receipt of financial assistance grant payments
for the full allocation for 2024-2025 and a 50% advance payment for 2025-2026.

Net cash used in investing activities (e.g. payments for property, infrastructure, plant and equipment) was
$9.503 million in 2025, which included $2.040 million net transfers from a term deposit investment with a
six-month maturity period. In comparison the net cash used in investing in 2024 was $9.283 million, which
included $4.962 million transferred to a term deposit investment with a six-month maturity period.

Net cash used in financing activities was $0.580 million in 2025 compared with $1.173 million provided
by financing activities in 2024.

11671




BN
14 OCTOBER 2025 &

COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES Ararat Rural City

Financial Statements - Capital Works

The Statement of Capital Works details the capital works completed during 2025. It shows $11.704
million invested in 2025 compared with $15.033 million in 2024, a decrease of $3.329 million. Total
property works decreased by $3.186 million with the Gordon Street Recreation Reserve funded by grants
in 2024. Total Infrastructure works decreased by $0.054 million with several projects completed from
funds carried forward from the previous year.

Highlights in the building area included completion of the Ararat Library Upgrade and Barkly Street
Toilet.

Highlights in the infrastructure area included an increased road sealing and resheeting program,
including the innovative Otta sealing to a number of rural and urban gravel roads. Road works were also
completed in Churchill Avenue and Mount William Road

Performance Statement
The Victorian Government has introduced a mandatory system of performance reporting which
prescribes performance information to be included in Council’s annual reports.

“Councils must describe the prescribed indicators and measures in the performance statement so it is
clear to the audience what is being measured. In addition, the performance statement must include the
results achieved in relation to the prescribed service performance outcome, financial performance and
sustainable capacity for the financial year and three preceding years”.

For the financial performance indicators and measures, the performance statement must also include the
forecast results for four years based on the financial statements included in Council’'s budget.

Reporting trend information helps the reader understand changes in Council performance over time and
acts as a point of reference for results. The regulations require that Councils must also provide an
explanation of any material variations in the results between the current year and other years disclosed, to
enable the reader to form an understanding of the reason for the variation”.

The performance reporting framework requires Councils to load the indicators included in this
performance statement, as well as a number of other indicators that are required to be included in the
report of operations, onto the "Know your Council” website - www.vic.gov.au/know-your-council, which
will allow the community to compare the performance result of Councils across Victoria.

Part of the performance reporting framework includes the State Government setting expected ranges for
each indicator. Based on the draft financial statement and performance statement, Council is within the
expected range for most indicators. The reasons for the material variations are included in the
performance statement.

Audit and Risk Committee Review

The draft Financial Statements and Performance Statement were considered by the Audit and Risk
Committee on 9 September 2025, and a current version circulated to committee members on 9 October
2025. Mr Ryan Schischka from Johnsons MME presented the draft Auditors Closing Report at that
meeting, and discussed the audit progress with the Audit and Risk Committee members. Further changes
may be required after the Victorian Auditor General's Office has reviewed the statements and before the
nominated Councillors certify the accounts in their final form.

KEY CONSIDERATIONS

Alignment to Council Plan Strategic Objectives
6 Strong and Effective Governance

Budget Implications
There are no budget implications arising from approving the statements
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Policy/Relevant Law

Section 99 (2) of the Local Government Act 2020 states that: “the Council, after passing a resolution giving
its approval in principle to the performance statement and financial statements, must submit the statements
to the auditor for reporting on the audit”.

Section 99 (3) of the Local Government Act 2020 states that: “The Council must ensure that the performance
statement and financial statements, in their final form after any changes recommended or agreed by the
auditor have been made, are certified in accordance with the regulations by—

(a) 2 Councillors authorised by the Council for the purposes of this subsection; and

(b) any other persons prescribed by the regulations for the purposes of this subsection.”

Section 99 (5) of the Local Government Act 2020 states that: “the auditor must not sign a report under
subsection (4) or under Part 3 of the Audit Act 1994 unless the performance statement or the financial
statements (as applicable) have been certified under subsection (3).”

Sustainability Implications
There are no economic, social or environmental implications in relation to the item

Risk Assessment
Council is required to approve the statements before the Auditor-General can issue the audit report

Stakeholder Collaboration and Community Engagement
Various Council officers have been involved with the preparation of the statements. The statements will be
included in the Annual Report that will be made available to the public.

RECOMMENDATION

That:

1. Pursuant to Section 99 of the Local Government Act 2020, Council gives approval in principle to the
Financial Statements and Performance Statements for the year ended 30 June 2025; and

2. Pursuant to Section 99 of the Local Government Act 2020, Council authorises the Chief Executive

Officer, Councillor Jo Armstrong and Councillor Bob Sanders to certify the 2024/25 Financial
Statements and Performance Statement in their final form.

MOVED CR JOYCE

SECONDED CR PRESTON

That:

1. Pursuant to Section 99 of the Local Government Act 2020, Council gives approval in principle
to the Financial Statements and Performance Statements for the year ended 30 June 2025;
and

2. Pursuant to Section 99 of the Local Government Act 2020, Council authorises the Chief

Executive Officer, Councillor Jo Armstrong and Councillor Bob Sanders to certify the
2024/25 Financial Statements and Performance Statement in their final form.

Cr Joyce, Cr Preston and Cr J Armstrong spoke for the motion.
CARRIED 6/0
5225/25

ATTACHMENTS
The Financial Statements and Performance Statement are provided as Attachment 2.1
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Ararat Rural City
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

For the Year Ended 30 June 2025
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Ararat Rural City Council
Financial Report
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Ararat Rural City Council

2024/2025 Financial Report

Certification of the Financial Statements
In my opinion, the ying fi ial stat ts have been prepared in d with the Local Government Act 2020, the Local Government
(Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020, the A lian A ing Standards and other datory professional reporting requi ts.

Karissa Hogan, BCom, CPA
Principal Accounting Officer

Dated : 0
Ararat
In our opinion, the ying financial statement: fairly the fi ial transactions of the Ararat Rural City Counci for the year ended 30

June 2025 and the financial position of the Council as at that date.

At the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances that would render any parti in the fi ial st ts to be misleading or
inaccurate.

We have been authorised by the Council and by the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Reguiafions 2020 to certify the financial statements in
their final form.

Jo Armstrong

Councillor

Dated : 0
Ararat

Bob Sanders

Councillor

Dated : 0
Ararat

Dr Tim Hamison

Chief Executive Officer

Dated : 0
Ararat

Page 4
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Ararat Rural City Council
2024/2025 Financial Report

<INSERT VAGO REPORT - PAGE 1>
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Ararat Rural City Council
2024/2025 Financial Report

<INSERT VAGO REPORT - PAGE 2>
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Ararat Rural City Council
2024/2025 Financial Report
Comprehensive Income Statement
For the Year Ended 30 June 2025
Note 2025 2024
$'000 $°000

Income / revenue
Rates and charges 31 18,093 17,883
Statutory fees and fines 32 266 369
User fees 33 1,719 1,620
Grants - operating 34 14,343 3,146
Grants - capital 34 1477 2,329
Contributions - monetary 35 397 1,190
Net gain (or loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 36 (388) 23
Fair value adjustments for investment property 6.3 1,080 46
Share of net profits (or loss) of joint ventures 6.2 29 3)
Other income 37 510 744
Total income / revenue 37,526 27,347
Expenses
Employee costs 41 12,241 11,973
Materials and services 42 12,222 11,595
Depreciation 43 11,089 9,778
Depreciation - right of use assets 57 363 149
Borrowing costs 6 44
Finance costs - leases 100 35
Other expenses 44 348 399
Total expenses 36,369 33,973
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 1,157 (6,626)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to surplus or deficit in future periods
Net asset revaluation gain/(loss) 6.1 130,244 8,340
Total other comprehensive income 130,244 8,340

The ahove comprehensive income statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Page 7
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Ararat Rural City Council
2024/2025 Financial Report
Balance Sheet
As at 30 June 2025
Restated
Note 2025 2024
$'000 $'000

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 51 14,841 3,049
Trade and other receivables 51 3,066 5212
Other financial assets 51 - 3,040
Inventories 52 71 7
Prepayments 52 = 360
Total current assets 17,978 11,732
Non-current assets
Trade and other receivables 51 4 5
Investments in joint arrangements 6.2 1,527 498
Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 6.1 639,714 509,405
Right-of-use assets 57 1,784 1,359
Investment property 6.3 2,615 1,535
Total non-current assets 645,644 512,802
Total assets 663,622 524,534
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 53 2,357 1,024
Trust funds and deposits 53 315 303
Contract and other liabilities 53 9,337 3,372
Provisions 55 2175 2,104
Interest-bearing liabilities 54 156 150
Lease liabilities 57 426 275
Total current liabilities 14,766 7,228
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 55 286 293
Interest-bearing liabilities 54 - 156
Lease liabilities 57 1,412 1,100
Total non-current liabilities 1,698 1,549
Total liabilities 16,464 8,777
Net assets 647,158 515,757
Equity
Accumulated surplus 295,501 299,270
Reserves 91 351,657 216,487
Total Equity 647,158 515,757

2024 comparative balances have been restated as detailed in Note 11.
The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Page 8
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Ararat Rural City Council
2024/2025 Financial Report
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended 30 June 2025
Accumulated Revaluation Other
Note Total Surplus Reserve Reserves
2025 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Balance at beginning of the financial year 515,757 299,270 208,123 8,364
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 1,157 1,157 - -
Net asset revaluation gain/(loss) 6.1 130,244 - 130,244 -
Transfers to other reserves 9.1 - (8,978) - 8,978
Transfers from other reserves 9.1 - 4,052 - (4,052)
Balance at end of the financial year 647,158 295,501 338,367 13,290
Accumulated Revaluation Other
Total Surplus Reserve Reserves
2024 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Balance at beginning of the financial year 312,899 92,600 199,783 20,516
Correction of prior period error - refrospective 11 201,144 201,144 - -
Surplus/(deficit) for the year (6,626) (6,626) - -
Net asset revaluation gain/(loss) 8,340 - 8,340 -
Transfers to other reserves 91 - (2,628) - 2,628
Transfers from other reserves 91 - 14,780 - (14,780)
Balance at end of the financial year 515,757 299,270 208,123 8,364

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Page 9
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Ararat Rural City Council
2024/2025 Financial Report

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 30 June 2025

2025 2024
Inflows/ Inflows/
(Outflows) (Outflows)
Note $'000 $'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Rates and charges 17,942 17,520
Statutory fees and fines 270 368
User fees 1,805 1,985
Grants - operating 18,821 3,210
Grants - capital 5,702 2,226
Contributions - monetary 278 1,294
Interest received 347 589
Trust funds and deposits taken 374 428
Other receipts 168 162
Net GST refund/payment 2,042 2,01
Employee costs (13,240) (12,110)
Materials and services (11,912) (14,794)
Trust funds and deposits repaid (369) (431)
Other payments (353) (410)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 92 21,875 2,048
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 6.1 (11,704) (15,033)
Proceeds from sale of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 161 788
Payments for investments (1,000) (3,040)
Proceeds from sale of investments 3,040 8,002
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities (9,503) (9,285
Cash flows from financing activities
Finance costs (6) (44)
Repayment of borrowings (150) (945)
Interest paid - lease liability (100) (38)
Repayment of lease liabilities (324) (146)
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities (580) (1,173)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 11,792 (8,408)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 3,049 11,457
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 5.1 14,841 3,049

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
Page 10
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Ararat Rural City Council
2024/2025 Financial Report
Statement of Capital Works
For the Year Ended 30 June 2025
Note 2025 2024
$'000 $'000
Property
Land - 88
Land improvements - 608
Buildings 618 3,108
Total property 618 3,804
Plant and equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment 495 581
Library books 42 45
Total plant and equipment 537 626
Infrastructure
Roads 9,276 8,599
Bridges 131 1,025
Footpaths and cycleways 578 732
Drainage 564 247
Total infrastructure 10,549 10,603
Total capital works expenditure 6.1 11,704 15,033
Represented by:
New asset expenditure 532 2,847
Asset renewal expenditure 9,877 10,247
Asset upgrade expenditure 1,295 1,939
Total capital works expenditure 11,704 15,033

The above statement of capital works should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Page 11
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Ararat Rural City Council
2024/2025 Fis ial Report

Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2025

Note 1 OVERVIEW
Introduction

The Ararat Rural City Counci was established by an Order of the Governor in Council on 22 September 1894 and is a body corporate.
The Council's main office is located at 59 Vincent Street, Ararat.

Statement of compliance

These fi ial stat tsareag i I report that ists of a Comprehensive | Statement, Bal Sheet, St t of
Chang 'mEquilySf ofCashFlows Statememof(:apvtalWorksandNotes panying these fi i The g purp
fi ial report plies with the A g Stand (AAS), other authoritats of the A ian A ing Standard!

Board, the Local Government Act 2020, andtheLocaIGovenmnent(PJammgamlReporhng)Regulaboumzo

The Council is a not-for-prefit entity and therefore applies the additional AUS paragraphs applicable to a not-for-profit entity under the Austrakan
Accounting Standards.

Accounting policy information
1.1 Basis of accounting

A ing policies are sell "andappliedmzmnnervdudlmsuresﬂtatheresdhmﬁnanclalmmnabon tisfies the of rel
and refiability, thereby g that the sub of the underl ions or other events is reported. Specific accounting policies applied are

disclosed in sections where the related bal or fi | statement matter is disclosed.

The accrual basis of accounting has been used in the preparation of these fi ial stat ts, except for the cash flow information, whereby assets,
liabilities, equity, i and exp are ised in the reporting period to which they relate, regardiess of when cash is received or paid.

The financial statements are based on the historical cost convention unless a different measurement basis is specifically disclosed in the notes to the

financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going basis. The fi ial stats s are in A lian dollars. Theamomtspfesemedm
the financial statements have been ded to the th d doliars unless otherwise specified. Minor di pancies in tables bety

and the sum of P ts are due to g

Judgements, estimates and assunpbons ze requted to be made about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other The esti and ts are based on professional judgement derived from historical exp and various other

factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estmates.

Reuvisions to c - are gnised in the period in which the estimate is revised and alse in future periods that are affected by the
revision. Judgements and assumptions made by management in the application of AAS’s that have significant effects on the financial statements and
estimates relate to:

- the fair value of land, buildings, & 1 plantand quipment (refer to Note 6.1)

-the ination of depreciation for buil plant and equip (refer to Note 6.1)

-the d ination of ! provisi (tefertoNoie55)
-Ihedetemmatonofwhemerperbnnanceobhgahmszewfﬁmenﬂyspeaﬁcsoasbdeﬁmmemanmnommﬂsmﬂunheswpeof
AASB 15 R, from C with Custo or AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities (refer to Note 3)

-thedelerrmnabon naowdamewrﬁMSBiﬂLeases.ofheleasem the estimation of the discount rate when not implicit in the lease and

an it is in sub short-term or low value (refer to Note 5.7)
o(heraleasrequm]udgemms

Unless otherwise stated, all ing policies are L with those applied in the pnoryex Where appmpnate comparative figures have been
amended to accord with current presentation, and disclosure has been made of any i

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

i and exp are gnised net of the of iated GST. Receivabl andpayablesxeshtedw*nsmofheamouﬂofGST
ivable or payable. The net of GST ble from, or payable to, the y is included with other ivables or payables in

the balance sheet.

1.2 Impact of emergencies and natural disasters
During 2024-25 Comcll's operations were impacted Iry the Yam Gap fires which occumred in December 2024 and January 2025. Council has

noted the g significant i on its fi P
- Additional revenue — Council submnted claims for Disaster Fi ial Assistance for costs i d. Claims b&al‘l\g §0.158 mihon have been
approved in July and August 2025. Council has also received reimbursement of $0.064 milson for costs related to | water

- Additional costs — Council incurred costs of $0.343 milkion as a result of the Yarram Gap Fires, including $0.126 million in staff salanes. §0.056
million for water deliveries, $0.0€0 million for mental health support, $0.074 million for plant and equipment hire, and road maintenance works, $0.027
million for relief Centre supplies, meals and accommodation.
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Note 2 ANALYSIS OF OUR RESULTS
2.1 Performance against budget
The performance against budget notes pare Council's fi ial plan, exp d through its annual budget, with actual performance. The Local
Gi (Planning and Reporting) Regulafions 2020 requil cplanation of any i i Council has adopted a ality threshold of
$250,000 where further explanation is warranted. Explanations have not been provided for variations below the materiality threshold unless the variance
is idered to be ial b of its nature.
These notes are prepared to meet the requi ts of the Local Gi Act 2020 and the Local G (Planning and Reporting)
Regulations 2020.

2.1.1 Income / Revenue and expenditure

Budget Actual Variance Variance
2025 2025
$°000 $°000 $°000 % Ref
Income / Revenue
Rates and charges 17.950 18,093 143 1%
Statutory fees and fines 272 268 (6) -2%
User fees 1.515 1.719 204 13%
Grants - operating 8,323 14,343 6.020 2% 1
Grants - capital 7.304 1477 (5.827) -80%
Contributions - monetary 100 397 297 297% 3
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property 100%
infrastructure, plant and equipment - (388) (388)
Fair value adjustments for investment property - 1.080 1,080 100%
Share of net profits/{losses) of i and joint - 29 29 100%
Other income 723 510 (213) -29%
Total income / revenue 36,186 37.526 1,340 4%
Expenses
Employee costs 11,333 12,241 (908) -8% 6
Materials and services 8,250 12,222 (3.963) -48% 7
Depreciation 7.881 11,082 (3.408) -44% 8
Depreciation - right of use assets 302 363 (61) -20%
Borrowing costs 6 6 - 0%
Finance costs - leases 74 100 (26) -35%
Other expenses 388 348 20 5%
Total expenses 28,023 36,369 (8.346) -30%
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 8,163 1,157 (7,006) -86%
Page 13
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(i) Explanation of material variations

Variance ltem Explanation
Ref
1 Grants - operating Council received $4.606 million more than budget for financial assistance grants due to 50% of the
estimated annual allocation for 2025-2026 being received in June 2025. Council was successful in
obtaining several grants that had not been budgeted for, including $0.250 million to upgrade Tatyoon
Oval and $0.910 million for emergency support and community recovery.

2 Grants - capital The budget included a $5.000 million grant fowards Mount William Road reconstruction and $0.843
million towards Buangor-Ben Nevis Road reconstruction. Works have not yet commenced on these
roads due to delays in obtaining cultural heritag g plans. Grant funds will be received in
2025/28 once the works have commenced.

3 Contributions - monetary Additicnal contributions include $0.151 million ived for i devels works leted
by Council, $0.074 miflion for upgrades to community facdities and $0.057 million received foropen
space contributions.

4 Net gain/(loss) on disposal of Some plant and equip was sold at auction for less than the value recorded in the accounts. Low

property, infrastructure, plant and  depreciation rates meant the equipment's’ recorded values stayed relatively high over time and the sale
equipment prices did not cover these values, resuiting in a loss on disposal. Additicnally, a review of Council's

fixtures fittings and furniture assets identified a number of items that are obsolete or no longer held,
which have now been treated as disposals.

5 Fair value adjustments for A fair value t of Council's i tment rties has ited in a revaluation adjustment of
investment property SiO&DmIimﬂlatuasnotndudednﬂle!mdqet
] Employee costs Council has incurred increased staffing costs sated with resp g to bushfi y events,
including the operation of reief and y centres. Council has i govenlnenlﬁmdmghr

additional staff positions that had not been included in the budget and there has also been some
organisational changes resulting in redundancies.

7 Materials and services Materials and services are higher than budget with increased operating expenditure to deliver the
outcomes for the additional operating grants, and to complete projects funded from income camied
forward from the previous year. Council also incurred over $0.: 343 million expenditure for emergency

and reinstatement works, and operating relief and Yy in resp to the bushfire events in
December 2024 and January 2025.
8 Depreciation Depteuanon increased by $1.311 mlﬁon compared to the previous year due to property and
asset luati K asat1J\dy2M4 Thasouk:omediﬁetedfrunlmd
discussions with the valuer, which had anticipated a red in depreciation, which was reflected in
the budget for 2024/2025.
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2.1.2 Capital works

Budget Actual Variance Variance
2025 2025
$°000 $°000 $°000 % Ref
Property
Buildings 550 618 68 12%
Total property 550 618 68 12%
Plant and equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment - 495 495 100% 1
Library books 40 42 2 5%
Total plant and equipment 40 537 497 1243%
Infrastructure
Roads 13,683 0276 (4.417) -32% 2
Bridges 80 131 51 64%
Footpaths and cycleways 400 578 178 45%
Drainage 750 564 (186) -25%
Total infrastructure 14,923 10.549 (4,374) -29%
Total capital works expenditure 15.513 11,704 (3.809) -25%
Represented by:
New asset expenditure 138 532 394 286%
Asset renewal expenditure 13,424 0.877 (3.557) -26%
Asset upgrade expenditure 1,941 1,205 (646) -33%
Total capital works expenditure 15.513 11,704 (3.809) -25%
(1) Explanation.of
Variance Item Explanation
Ref

1 Plant, machinery and equipment The budget did not allow forthe purchase of any new plant or equipment, however during the year it
y fo rep! two vehicles. Council also purchased a Hook Lift Waste Truck which will

result in future savings in contract costs. This p was funded from the waste management
reserve.
2 Roads Council experienced delays in obtaining cultural heri g plans and reports

and were unable to commence works on Mount William Road or Buangor-Ben Nevis Road. These
works are being funded from grants of $8 million which will not be received until the works have
commenced. Additional resheeting and reseal works were undertaken in advance to ensure that a high
level of capital works were still completed for 2024/2025.
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2.2 Analysis of Council results by program
Council delivers its functions and activities gh the

2.2.1 Growing our place
The program brings together the planning, building and environmental health service areas to align Council's gic objectives to support growth,
community amenity, and public heaith.

Building robust local economies
The program combines Council's economic development and tourism services to elevate the region’s status as an agriculture powerhouse that drives
high yield returns for producers and operators in the Grampians.

Preserving our environment
The prog bines waste g sustainability, parks and gardens and gency g delivering a circul y sirategy via
Revolution Ararat, revitalising our public parks, and preparedness planning for fire and flood.

Developing and maintaining key enabling infrastructure
The program provides project design and management, property maintenance, city services, road maintenance, major and minor plant, infrastructure
works and asset infr les and | that underpin freight efficiency and town development.

ag upp Par P

Enhancing community life

The program recognises the role of arts, culture, education, and ity participation in enhancing ity life, and is responsible for ging
our cultural venues, library services, positive ageing progl hildren’s ices, public ion, and ity events support

Strong and effective governance

The program is focused on establishing a strong gt that pubkc value through efficient financial management, rating,

p council operats civic functi and public engag
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2.2.2 Summary of income / revenue, expenses, assets and capital expenses by program

Grants
:::: Expenses ﬁg;' Ti::r1Mﬂ$us
revenue
2025 $'000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Growing our place 382 1.170 (788) 7 -
Building robust focal i 32 647 (615) 3 1.502
Preserving our environment 3,883 6.284 (2.401) 1,062 2387
Developing and maintaining key enabling infrastructure 5723 16,891 (10,088) 5,852 584,951
Enhancing community life 2,825 4,058 (2.133) 1,731 53,781
Strong and effective governance 24,681 6.619 18,062 7,365 21,021
37.526 36,369 1,157 15,820 663,622
Grants
el e B I
revenue
2024 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Growing our place 716 1.047 (331) 220 -
Building robust local l 26 493 (467) 3 500
Preserving our environment 3,715 5,850 (2.135) 75 875
Developing and maintaining key enabling infrastructure 2617 16,250 (13,642) 2,330 480,500
Enhancing community life 3622 4572 (850) 2,501 21,573
Strong and effective governance 168,651 5,752 10,809 247 12,187
27,347 33,973 (6.626) 5475 524,534
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Note 3 FUNDING FOR THE DELIVERY OF OUR SERVICES 2025 2024
3.1 Rates and charges $°000 $'000
Council uses the Capital improved Valuation as the basis of valuation of all properties within the municipal district. The Capital Improved Valuation of a

property is its approximate market value at a given date of 1 January 2024.

The valuation base used to calculate general rates for 2024/25 was $6,698 million (2023/24 $6,730 million). The 2024/25 rate in the Capital Improved
Valuation dollar was General 0.3507, Farm 0.1350, Commercial 0.4210, and Industrial 0.4810 (2023/24 General 0.3508, Farm 0.1333, Commercial 0.5052,

and Industrial 0.5052).

Council has delivered a net zero percent rate rise for the seven year period up to 2024/25, with the minimal growth in general rates and charges resulting
from supplementary rates adjustments.

General 7.194 7070
Commercial 768 745
Industrial 252 240
Farm 8.054 6,054
Municipal charge 842 835
Waste management charge 2451 2422
Interest on rates and charges 161 164
Revenue in beu of rates 573 553
Total rates and charges 18,093 17,883

The date of the general revaluation of land for rating purposes within the municipal district was 1 January 2024 and the valuation was first applied in the

rating year commencing 1 July 2024.

Annual rates and charges are recognised as income when Council issues annual rates notices. Suppk y rates are gnised when a valuation and
reassessment is completed and a supplementary rates notice issued.

3.2 Statutory fees and fines

Infringements and costs 30 23
Town planning fees 182 300
Land information certificates 18 14
Permits 38 2
Total statutory fees and fines 266 369
Statutory fees and fines are recognised as income when the service has been provided, the pay is sved, or when the penalty has been applied,
whichever first occurs.

3.3 User fees

Leisure centre and recreation 527 520
Child care/children’s programs [} 5
Registration and other permits 140 134
Building services 50 53
Waste management services 473 401
Ararat Town Hall Charges 162 145
Visitor Information Centre 5 8
Alexandra Oval Gordon Street Oval 137 109
Road occupancy 14 1
Private works - 3
Other fees and charges 205 134
Total user fees 1.719 1,620
User fees by timing of revenue recognition

User fees recognised at a pont in time 1,719 1,820
Total user fees 1,719 1.620

User fees are recognised as revenue at a point in time, or over time, when (or as) the performance obligation is satisfied. Recognition is based on the
underlying contractual terms.
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2025 2024
$'000 $'000
3.4 Funding from other levels of government
Grants were received in respect of the following:
Summary of grants
Commonwealth funded grants 13,456 2,180
State funded grants 2,364 3,205
Total grants received 15,820 5.475
(a) Operating Grants
P, W ith
Financial Assistance Grants 12,047 328
R - State G
Aged care 3 4
School crossing supervisors 16 15
Libraries 155 155
Maternal and chiid heaith 374 457
Environment 145 82
Culture 140 140
Administration 48 45
Total recurrent operating grants 12,928 1.226
Non-re - C alth
Community development 10 10
Ni - State
Natural disaster 210 1,255
Community development 2 182
Maternal and child heaith 7 95
Culture 7 =
Employment 3 82
Planning and development 162 310
Recreation 250 26
Total non-recurrent operating grants 1.415 1.920
Total operating grants 14,343 3,146
(b) Capital Grants
Recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Roads to recovery 380 222
Total recurrent capital grants 380 222
Nor - C alth G
Transport 1,005 158
Recreation 14 1462
Ni - Stare G
Transport - 419
Recreation 78 ]
Total non-recurrent capital grants 1,097 2,107
Total capital grants 1.477 2329
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(c) Recognition of y:nt income

Before gnising fi g from g grants as the Council vhether there is a that is enfi ble and has sufficiently
speuﬁcpaﬁnmobipﬁmnamdm“hAASBﬁRmeﬁmCmmmcm When both these conditions are satisfied, the
Council:
- identifies each performance obligation relating to under the tlagr
- determines the transaction price;
reeoomsesaeonkadititylwntsobiaamlsmderhwm

asit its p obligations, at the point in tme or over time when services are rendered.
Wlmemmmsmmfmeeaﬂemdwdoesmhavewﬁuenﬂyspeeﬁcpehﬂnamenuqms the Council applies AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-
Profit Entities .

Grant revenue with sufficiently specific performance obligations is recognised over time as the performance obligations specified in the underlying
aweemeﬁaremetWhereperhnwuobﬁﬁusmmtsﬂﬁmenﬂysped’n gmlsaereeoglsedoﬂheezherﬂfreoeiplorwhenanunemdmmal
right to receipt has been established. Grants g to capital proj prog y as the capital project is completed. The
HmmmammdheammhMUnduwhmm“wsed

2025 2024
$'000 $'000
Income recognised under AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities
General purpose 12,047 328
Specific purpose grants fo acquire non-financial assets 1477 2329
Other specific purpose grants 1.858 2,005
Revenue recognised under AASB 15 R from C with Ci
Specific purpose grants 338 723
15,820 5.475
(d) Unspent grants received on condition that they be spent in a specific manner
Operating
Balance at start of year 2,081 2,593
Received during the fi ial year and ined unspent at bal date 4018 578
Received in prior years and spent during the financial year (330) (180)
Balance at year end 6,669 2,981
Capital
Balance at start of year 391 475
Received during the financial year and ined unspent at bal date 2643 301
Received in prior years and spent during the financial year (366) (475)
Balance at year end 2,668 391
Unspent grants are d ined and disclosed on a cash basis.
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2025 2024

3.5 Contributions $'000 $'000
Monetary 397 1,190
Total contributions 397 1.190
M y and non y butions are gnised as income at their fair value when Council obtains control over the contributed asset.
3.6 Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
Proceeds of sale 181 788
Written down value of assets disposed (549) (765)
Total net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (388) 23
The profit or loss on sale of an asset is determined when control of the asset has passed to the buyer.
3.7 Other income
Interest 347 580
Investment property rental 183 155
Total other income 510 744
Interest is recognised as it is earned.
Other income is measured at the fair value of the consideration ived or ivable and is gnised when Council gains control over the right to

receive the income.

Page 21

11694




14 OCTOBER 2025

COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

Ararat Rural City Council
2024/2025 Financial Report

Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2025

Ararat Rural City

2025 2024
Note 4 THE COST OF DELIVERING SERVICES $'000 $'000
4.1 (a) Employee costs
Wages and salaries 10,616 10,532
WorkCover 302 200
Superannuation 1,268 1.163
Fringe benefits tax 55 78
Total employee costs 12,241 11,973
(b) Superannuation
Council made contributions to the following funds:
Defined benefit fund
Employer contributions to Local Authorities Superannuation Fund (Vision Super) 10 14
10 14
Employer contributions payable at reporting date. = =
Accumulation funds
Employer contributions to Local Authorities Superannuation Fund (Vision Super) 77 876
Employer contributions - other funds 541 473
1,258 1,149
Employer contributions payable at reporting date. - =
Contributions made exclud is d at date. Refer to note 9.3 for further i g to C afion obligations.
4.2 Materials and services
Materials and services 8,639 7.956
Contract payments 510 620
Plant and equipment maintenance 1,658 1,702
Utilities 863 785
Consultants 551 462
Total materials and services 12,222 11,595
Ex are gnised as they are i d and reported in the ial year to which they relate.
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2025 2024
$'000 $'000
4.3 Depreciation
Property 2,660 1,955
Plant and equipment 818 a18
Infrastruciure 7,610 6.807
Total depreciation 11,089 9,778
Refer to note 5.7 and 6.1 for a more detfailed break of depreciation and ing policy.
4.4 Other expenses
Auditors' remuneration - VAGO - audit of the fi ial st ts, perft stats and 47 55
grant acquittals
Auditors' remuneration - Other External Audits - 1
Auditors' remuneration - Internal Audit 51 a1
Councillors' allowances 250 252
Total other expenses 348 399
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Note 5 INVESTING IN AND FINANCING OUR OPERATIONS 2025 2024
5.1 Financial assets $'000 $'000
(a) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 4 4
Cash at bank 9,833 3,045
Term deposits 5,004 -
Total cash and cash equivalents 14,841 3,049
(b) Other financial assets
Current
Term deposits - 3,040
Total current other financial assets - 3,040
Total other financial assets - 3,040
Total cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets 14,841 6,089

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits at call, and other highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

Other financial assets are valued at fair value, at balance date. Term deposits are measured at original cost. Any unrealised gains and
losses on holdings at balance date are recognised as either a revenue or expense.

Other financial assets include term deposits and those with original maturity dates of three to 12 months are classified as cumrent, whilst
term deposits with maturity dates greater than 12 months are classified as non-current.
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2025 2024

(c) Trade and other receivables $'000 $'000
Current
Statutory receivables

Rates debtors 2,466 2,320

Net GST receivable 6 403
Non statutory receivables

Other debtors 594 2,489
Total current trade and other receivables 3,066 5,212
Non-current
Statutory receivables

Special rate scheme 4 5
Total non-current trade and other receivables 4 5
Total trade and other receivables 3,070 5,217

Short term receivables are carried at invoice amount. An allowance for expected credit losses is recognised based on past experience and
other objective evidence of expected losses. Long term receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

(d) Ageing of Receivables

The ageing of the Council's frade and other receivables (excluding statutory receivables) that are not impaired was:

Current (not yet due) 463 2,367
Past due by up to 30 days 57 102
Past due between 31 and 180 days 63 12
Past due between 181 and 365 days 10 3
Past due by more than 1 year 1 5
Total trade and other receivables 594 2,489
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5.2 Non-financial assets 2025 2024
$°000 $°000

(a) Inventories
Inventories held for sale 19 23

held for distributi 52 48
Total inventories 7 7

tories held for distributi d at cost, adjusted when applicable for any loss of service potential. All other inventories are measured at the

lower of cost and net realisable value Where inventories are acquired for no cost or nominal consideration, they are measured at current replacement
cost at the date of acquisition.
(b) Other assets
Prepayments - 360
Total other assets - 360

5.3 Payables, trust funds and deposits and contract and other liabilities

(a) Trade and other payables

Current

Non-statutory payables

Trade payabies 2,264 880
Accrued expenses 03 235
Total current trade and other payables 2,357 1,024

(b) Trust funds and deposits

Current

Refundable deposits 66 51
Fire services levy 100 a0
Retention amounts 45 69
Other refundable deposits 25 23
Total current trust funds and deposits 315 303
(c) Contract and other liabilities

Contract liabilities

Current

Grants ived in ad\ - operating 6,659 2,981
Other 10 =
Total contract liabilities 6,669 2,981
Other liabilities

Current

Deferred capital grants 2,668 301
Total other liabilities 2,668 391
Total contract and other liabilities 9,337 3,372
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Trust funds and deposits
A t ived as deposits and retention amounts controlled by Council are recognised as trust funds until they are returned, transferred in

rd with the purpose of the receipt. or forfeited. Trust funds that are forfeited, resulting in council gaining control of the funds, are to be
recognised as revenue at the time of forfeit.
Contract kiabilities
Contract liabilities reflect iderati ived in from in respect of g t grants. C t liabilities are derecognised and
ded as when promised geods and services are transferred to the customer. Refer to Note 3.
Other fiabiliti
Grant i ion was ived from g it to support the ion of assets. Grant consideration is gnised as i ing specific
guidance under AASB 1058 as the asset is d. In is gnised to the extent of costs incurred-to-date because the costs of construction
most closely reflect the stage of completion. As such, Council has deferred recognition of a portion of the grant consideration received as a liability for
outstanding obligations.
Purpose and nature of items
Refundable deposits - Deposits are taken by council as a form of surety in a number of circumstances, including in ion to building works and for the
use of civic facilities.
Fire Service Levy - Council is the collection agent for fire services levy on behalf of the State Government. Council remits ived on a q rly

basis. Amounts disclosed here will be remitted to the state govemment in line with that process.

Retention Amounts - Council has a contractual right to retain certain amounts untd a contractor has met certain requirements or a related warrant or
defect period has elapsed. Subject to the satisfactory pletion of the contractual obligations, or the elapsing of time, these amounts will be paid to the
relevant contractor in line with Council’s contractual obligations.

5.4 Interest-bearing liabilities 2025 2024
$°000 $°000

Current

Other borrowings - secured 156 150

Total current interest-bearing liabilities 156 150

Non-current

Other borrowings - secured S 156

Total non-current interest-bearing liabilities - 156

Total 156 306

Borrowings are secured by Council’s rates

(a) The maturity profile for Council's borrowings is:

Not later than one year 156 150
Later than one year and not later than five years - 156

156 306

gs are initially d at fair value, being the cost of the interest bearing liabilities, net of t ion costs. The basis

subsequent to initial recognition depends on whether the Council has categorised its i bearing liabilities as either financial liabilities designated at
fair value through the profit and loss, or fi ial liabilites at ised cost. Any difference between the initial gnised and the redempti
value is recognised in net result over the period of the b ing using the effective interest method
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the il bearing liabilities. The Council determines the classification of its interest bearing

liabilities based on contractual repayment terms at every balance date.
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5.5 Provisions

2025 2024
Employee $°000 $°000
Bal. at beginning of the fi ial year 2307 2207
Additional provisions 1,188 1,266
Amounts used (1,134) {1.078)
Balance at the end of the financial year 2.461 2,397
Provisions - current 2,175 2,104
Provisions - non-current 288 203
(a) Employee provisions
Current provisions expected to be wholly settled within 12
months
Annual leave 801 808
Other leave 70 76

761 774
Current provisions expected to be wholly settled after 12
months
Annual leave 203 225
Long service leave 1,211 1,105

1.414 1,330
Total current employee provisions 2175 2,104
Non-current
Long service leave 286 203
Total t employee provisi 286 293
Aggregate carrying of employee p
Current 2,175 2,104
Non-current 286 203
Total aggregate carrying t of employee provisi 2,461 2,397
The calculation of employee costs and benefits includes all rel ts and are lated as follows at reporting date.
Annuaf leave
A liability for annual leave is gnised in the provision for employee benefits as a current liability because the Council does not have an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability. Liabilities for annual leave are measured at:
- nominal vaiue if the Council expects to wholly settle the liability within 12 months
- present value if the Council does not expect to wholly settle within 12 months.
Liabilities that are not expected to be wholly settled within 12 months of the reporting date are ised in the provision for employee benefits as current
liabilities, measured at the present value of the amounts expected fo be paid when the liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply
at the time of settlement.
Long service leave
Liability for long service leave (LSL) is gnised in the provision for employee benefits. Unconditional LSL is disclosed as a current liability as the
Council does not have an unconditional right to defer settiement. Unconditional LSL is measured at nominal value if expected to be settied within 12
ths or at p value if not expected to be settled within 12 months. Conditional LSL that has been d. where an employee is yet to reach a

qualifying term of employment, is disclosed as a non-current liability and measured at present value.
Key assumptions:
- discount rate 4.203% 4.348%
- index rate 4.250% 4.450%
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5.6 Commitments
The Council has entered into the following i C i are not gnised in the Bal Sheet. C are disclosed at their
inal value and p d inch of the GST payabk
Laterthan1  Laterthan 2
year and not years and not
Not later than  laterthan2 laterthan$ Later than 5
2025 1 year years years years Total
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $000
Operating
Consultancies 166 - - - 166
Digital Twin Victoria Monitoring Project 225 5 & = 225
Total 391 = - = 391
Capital
Roads 70 - - - 79
Digital Twin Victoria Equipment 132 - - - 132
Total 211 - - e 211
Laterthan1  Later than 2
year and not years and not
Not later than  laterthan2 laterthan5 Laterthan5
2024 1 year years years years Total
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Operating
Consultancies 80 = = S 82
Digital Twin Victoria Monitoring Project 225 o - = 25
Total 294 S > = 294
Capital
Buildings 67 - - - 687
Roads 246 - - - 248
Drainage 207 - - - 207
Digital Twin Victoria Equipment 132 - - - 132
Total 652 B 3 = 652
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5.7 Leases
At inception of a contract. Council vhether a contract is, or ins, a lease. A contract is, or ins, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To identify whether a contract conveys the right to control the
use of an identified asset, itis y to assess wheth

- The contract invoives the use of an identified asset:
- Council has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the peried of use; and
- Council has the right to direct the use of the asset.

This policy is applied to tered into, or changed, on or after 1 July 2019.

As a lessee, Council recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at
cost which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for:

- any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received; plus
- any initial direct costs incurred; and

- an ests of costs to le and the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located.
The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the date to the earlier of the end of the useful life
of the ndn-of-useassetorﬂle end of the lease term. The estimated useful lwes ofnqm-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of

y. plant and equip t In addition, the right-of-use asset is pers y d by imp losses, if any, and adjusted for certain
measummmts of the lease liability.
TheIeaseliduﬂyls|nmlymeasuedanheptesemvaheofﬂ1eleasepaymemsﬂmnnolpa|daﬂhe t date, di d using the
mlereslraﬁempdlcnnthebeasecr.lmaraecanmtbereadlly ined, an appropri ing rate. G lly, Council uses an
g rate as the discount rate.

PO

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
- Fixed payments;
- Variable lease nts that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date;

-A ts cted to be payable under a residual value g and

ﬂneenerusepnceunderapumhaseophmﬂm(:ouwi:s y certain to i inan | period if Council
is y certain fo ise an ion option, and penallesfntezlylennmabon ofa lease unless Cmnclllsreasonablyeerhnnolb
teminateeady

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way. a corresponding adjustment is made to the carmrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the camying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Right-of-Use Assets - Plant & Equipment 2025 2024
$°000 $°000
Opening balance 1,359 -
Additions 788 1,508
Depreciation charge (363) (149)
Closing balance 1,784 1,359
Lease Liabilities
Maturity analysis - | undi d cash flows
Less than one year 544 348
One to five years 1,583 1,226
Total undiscounted lease liabilities as at 30 June: 2,127 1.574

Lease Eabilities included in the Balance Sheet at 30

Current 428 275

Non-current 1412 1,100

Total lease liabilities 1,838 1,375
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Note 6 ASSETS WE MANAGE
6.1 Property, i
y of property. i
Carrying Carrying
amount amount
(restated)* 30 June 2025
30 June 2024 i A iati Disposal  Transfers
$000 5000 $000 $000 $000 5000
T7.151 578 5,157 184 140410
Plant and equipment 7.635 537 - 819) (548) - 6.804
Infrastructure 423,189 9,267 65,087 (7.810) - 1,142 401075
Work in progress 1429 1322 - - - (1.328) 1425
7 S S .- SO ) 58 2w
‘Summary of Work in Progress Opening WIP Additions Transfers  Closing WIP
$000 $000 §000 $000
Property 184 40 (184) 40
Infrastructure 1245 1.282 (1.142) 1385
Total 1423 132 (. 185

* 2024 balances have been restated as detaled in Note 11
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(a) Property
Lang Landunder Lang T '“’l:: Buildings - m-s“ Total Wark In Total
roads improvements ' specialised salised Buildings Progress Property
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 §000 $000 $000
Atfair value 1 July 2024 17,768 301 1.840 19,946 143,342 748 144,090 184 164220
Accumulated depreciation at 1 July 2024 - (85.649 586) 1 -
17.796 301 1 4,693
Movements in fair value
Additions - - - - 578 - 578 40 618
Revalation 28306 8 @3) 28329 32243 (510) 31733 - 60.062
Transfers - - - - 184 - 184 (184 -
— 5 G B 11 2 i m—
Depreciation and amortisation - = 48) (45) (2.608) (8) (2614 = (2.660)
Revaluation - - 79 79 4449 567 5.016 = 5,095
- k<) k] 188 561 2402 - 2855
At fair value 30 June 2025 48,1902 307 1.778 48275 176,347 238 176,585 40 224,900
Accumulated depreciation at 30 June 2025 - - (837) ) 1. i
Carrying amount 36,192 307 1,139 47,638 172 %0 1
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Plant and Equipment
“ Pod Fixtu
machinery __Fixtures Total plant
"ng  fittings and Library books  Artworks _and
= fumiture equipment
$000 $000 $°000 $000 $000
At fair value 1 July 2024 10392 1,003 1322 2105 14,892
Accumulated

depreciation at 1 July 2024 (5:434) (%1 %; Sk (;

Movements in fair value
S

Disposal o) 2 » g 1540
[ m— — ——

Depreciation and amortsatin 87 © @) y (819)

Accumulated depreciation of disposals 470 82 - - 1,292
B 813

At fair value 30 June 2025 0044 105 144 2,105 13.588

Accumulated depreciation at 30 June 2025 (5,751 7! - 784)

Carrying amount 3193 (ﬁ) %’ 2105 %
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(c) Infrastructure

At fair value 1 July 2024
Accumulated depreciation at 1 July 2024

Movements in fair value
Additions

Transfers

D reidivn s
Revaluation

At fair value 30 June 2025
Accumulated depreciation at 30 June 2025
Carrying amount

Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2025

(6:445) (e1) 205) (166) 1.610)
49.158 747) 200 1

1,088 37256
588,750 71,800 15,401 13,705 1,385 691,141
157,

* 2024 roads balances have been restated as detaled in Note 11
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The p thod of g is used for all acquisitions of assets, being the fair value of assets provided as consideration at the date of
acqustﬁmphsmylmdenhlcosbaihbutdﬂetomewqusmm Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer
a liability) in an orderly transaction bety t participants at the t date. Refer also to Note 8.4 for further disclosure regarding
fair value measurement.
Where assets are constructed by Council, cost includes all ials used in tructi direct labour, borrowing costs incurred during
struction, and an appropriate share of directly attri i and fixed overhead!

In accordance with Council's policy, the threshold limits have applied when recognising assets within an applicable asset class and unless
otherwise stated are consistent with the prior year.

Depreciati Depreciati Threshold
Period Period Limit

Asset recognition thresholds and depreciation period: 2023-24 202425 $000
Land & land improvements

land - - 10,000

land under roads - - 10,000

land improvements 20 years 31-80 years 10.000
Buildings

buildings 25-193 years  6-400 years 10,000
Plant and Equipment

plant, machinery and equipment 5- 25 years 5 - 25 years 3.000

fixtures, fittings and fumniture 10 years 10 years 3,000

library books 20 years 20 years 1
Infrastructure

roads - pavements and seals 10-50 years 10 - 60 years 10,000

roads - substructure 30 -100 years 15 - 200 years 10,000

roads - kerb, channel and minor culverts and other 80-120 years 68 - 120 years 10.000

bridges 100 - 125 years 76 - 150 years 10.000

footpaths and cycleways 20-125years  11-65 years 10,000

drainage 80 years 68 - 120 years 10.000
Land under roads

Land under roads acquired after 30 June 2008 are brought to account using the fair value basis. Council does not recognise land under roads that
it controlled prior to that period in its financial report.

Depreciation and riicati

Buildings. land impr plant and L it, infi cture, and other assets having imited useful lives are systematically depreciated over
their useful lives to the Council in a which reflect ptis ofheservleepderllalembocﬁedmﬂmseasse!s Estimates of remaining
useful lives and residual values are made on a regular basis with major asset cl. y. Depreciation rates and hods are
reviewed annually.

Where assets have separate identifiable P that are subject to regular repl nt, these P are assigned distinct useful lives
and residual values and a separate depreciation rate is determined for each component.

Road are not depreciated on the basis that they are assessed as not having a limited useful life.

A rks are not depreciated.

Straight line depreciation is charged based on the residual useful life as determined each year.

Depreciation periods used are listed above and are consistent with the prior year unless otherwise stated.

Repairs and maintenance

Where the repair relates to the repi tof a p ‘ofanassehmdtheeost ds the capitalisation threshold the cost is capitalised

and depreciated. The carrying value of the replaced asset is
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Valuahon of artworks
Valt of were by qualified independent valuer, Simon Storey Valuers.
The valuation is at fair value based on current replacement cost as at the date of valuation.
The date and type of the t valuation is detailed in the ing table.

Details of Council's artworks and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 30 June 2025 are as follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Date of Type of
$'000 $'000 $'000 Valuation _ Valuation
Artworks - 2,105 - Jun-23 full
Total 3 2,105 Z

Valuation of land and buildings

Valuation oflandmdbuikﬁ\gswereundeﬂd(enasat1M2024byaqnﬁﬁediu!epmde¢ﬂvaher Jake Musgrave of APV Valuers and Asset

M t, Certified Practicing Valuer 113610. Theval\.laﬁonoflanda\dbtidhgslsatfmrvalue. bengmarketvnluebasedonh@estmd best
usepermﬂhedbyre(evarﬂhndplmgpmvsms Where land use is restricted th the valuation is reduced to
reflect this imitation. This adjustment is an unobservable input in the valuation. mea@smmhasnompadonmewnptehmmeme
statement.

Land under roads are valued at fair value using site values adjusted for englobo (undevelop andlmmsefvneed)chradensnﬁ access rights

mdprwahenbmstsofoﬁerpameswemdwraﬂuMasseBaMsm This adjustment is an vable input in the
valuation. The adjustment has no impact on the preh

Any significant ts in the b ble inputs for land and land under roads will have a significant impact on the fair value of these assets.

The date and type of the current valuation is detailed in the fi ing table. An indexed based luation was conducted in the current year,
based on the ABS Producer Price Index for building construction in Victoria for land imp: t and building assets. No indexation was applied to
land assets due to minimal indexation rates. A full luation of land and building assets will be conducted in 2027/28.

Details of the Council’s land and buildings and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 20 June 2025 are as follows:

Date of Type of

Level 1 Level2 Level3 | oluation  Valuation

Land N 26.102 T Jul24 full
Land under roads i 2 07 Jul-24 full
Land Improvements 5 . 1130 Jul24 full

Jun-25 index
Buildings . 233 02530 Jul24 full

Jun-25 index
Total 5 46,425 93,985
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Valuation of infra
Valuation of infrastructure assets has been determined in d: \vllhan dependent valuati dertaken as at 1 July 2024 by Janaka
W inghe of APV Valt and Asset Manag t, Bact of Eng g - Civil E g
The date and type of the luation is detailed in the ing table. An index based luation was conducted in the nt year, based
onmeABSProdmerPneelndexformedardbndgeeonsh:cbonm\rdmaforroads bridge and footpath assets and the ABS Producer Price
Index for other heavy and civil engi ] in Victoria for drainage assets. A full revaluation of these assets will be conducted in
2027/28.
The valuation is at fair value based on i, t cost less lated depreciation as at the date of valuation.

Details of the Council’s infrastructure and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 20 June 2025 are as follows:

Date of Type of

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Valuation Valuation

Roads - - 431453 Jul-24 full

Jun-25 index
Bridges - - 42024  Jul-24 full

Jun-25 index
Footpaths and cycleways - - 10.011  Jul-24 full

Jun-25 index
Drainage - - 6.887  Jul-24 full

Jun-25 index
Total - - 491,075

Description of significant unobservable inputs into level 3 valuations

Specialised land under roads is valued using a market based direct comparison technique. Significant unobservable inputs include the extent
and impact of restriction of use and the market cost of land per square metre. The extent and impact of restrictions on use resulfs in a reduction to
land values of 80%. The market value of land under roads varies significantly depending on the location of the land and the current market
conditions. Currently land under roads values range between $0 and $15 per square metre.

Specialised buildings are valued using a current repk t cost technique. Significant ble inputs include the i t
cost and remaining useful lives of buidings. Current repl. eosfsarecdeulmdonasquaremeﬁebestsandrangesﬁWWZbS!mBm
per square metre. The remaining useful lives of buildings are determined on the basis of the eurerleondtﬁanofbulldmgsandvuyfmm 1 yearto
265 years. Replacement cost is sensitive to changes in market conditions, with any i or d in cost flowing through fo the valuati

Useful lives of buildings are sensitive to ges in expeciati or requi —‘-Menddemershcdenofexhndmeusefulivesofbuldngs

Infrastructure assets are valued based on the current replacement cost. Significant unobservable inputs include the I, t cost

and remaining useful lives of infrastructure. The ining useful lives of infrastructure assets are determined on the basis of the current condition
dmeassetandvuyfmm 1 year to 195 years. Replaeemerneostlssensilvebcrmngesmmafketeondmons \mthanyncfenseordecteesem

cost flowing through to the valuation. Useful lives of infrastructure are sensitive to changes in use, expectations or req that could either

sholﬁmorextendﬂ\euseﬁ:llnesofmﬁasﬁuchjreassets

2025 2024
R iliation of specialised land $'000 $'000
Land under roads 307 301
Parks and reserves - 10.725
Total specialised land 307 11,026
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2025 2024
6.2 Investments in joint arrangements $'000 $'000

(a) Investments in joint venture
- Ararat Housing Enterprise Pty Ltd
Ararat Housing Enterprise Pty Ltd
Background
Council has entered a joint venture with a private investor to address the availability of affordable housing for the growing labour force within

the municipality, with the construction of 60 new homes over 15 years. The siructure of the project will be to build four new houses a year
over 15 years, with the purpose of leasing the properties for a period of four years and then selling the properties.

Fair value of Council's investment in Ararat Housing Enterprise Pty Ltd 1,527 498
Council's share of accumulated surplus/(deficit)
Council's share of accumulated surplus/(deficit) at start of year 2) 1
Reported surplus/(deficit) for year 29 (3)
Council's share of accumulated surplus/(deficit) at end of year 27 2)
Movement in carrying value of specific investment
Carrying value of investment at start of year 498 501
Share of surplus/(deficit) for year 29 (3)
Contribution to joint venture 1,000 -
Carrying value of investment at end of year 1,527 498

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method. Under this method, the interests are initially recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise Council’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and
movements in other comprehensive income in profit or loss and other comprehensive income respectively.

6.3 Investment property

Balance at beginning of financial year 1,535 1,661
Tramel Z (172)
Fair value adjustments 1,080 46
Balance at end of financial year 2,615 1,535

Investment property is held to generate long-term rental yields. Investment property is measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Costs incurred subsequent to initial acquisition are capitalised when it is probable that future economic benefit in excess of the originally
assessed performance of the asset will flow to the Council. Subsequent to initial recognition at cost, investment property is carried at fair
value, determined annually by independent valuers. Changes to fair value are recorded in the comprehensive income statement in the

Valuation of investment property

Valuation of investment property has been determined in accordance with an independent valuation by Peter Wigg of Wigg and Partners Pty
Ltd, Certified Practicing Valuer 62580, who has recent experience in the location and category of the property being valued. The date of
valuation is 30 June 2025. The valuation is at fair value, based on the current market value for the property.
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Note 7 PEOPLE AND RELATIONSHIPS
7.1 Council and key management remuneration

(a) Related Parties

Parent enfity

Ararat Rural City Council

Interests in joint ventures are detailed n Note 6.2
(b) Key Management Personnel

Key management personnel (mnmmﬂmmamwumdmmmmmdmm
City Council. The Counciliers, Chief Senior Managers are
Detals of KMP at any time during the year are:
2025 2024
No. No.

Councillors [¢ {Mayor from 12/11/2024, Deputy Mayor to 12/11/2024)

msws:des(hhwb 12/11/2024, Deputy Mayor from 12/11/2024)

Councifior Gwenda Aligood (to 26/10/2024)

Councillor Reb

Councilior Peter Beales (to 26/102024)

Councilior Henry Burridge (fo 26/10/2024)

Councilior Bil Waterston

Councilior Peter Joyce (from 26/10/2024)

Councilior Teli Kaur (from 26/10/2024)

Councilior Luke Preston (from 26/10/2024)

Chief Executive Officer

Manager Development & Regulation
Total Number of Councillors 10 7
Total of Chief Executive Officer and other Key Management Personnel 2 2
Total Number of Key Management Personnel 12 9
(qmmdmm

huding all forms of consideration paid, payable or p “byCancilormbd\dfdl\eWﬁ.n
hange for servi dered. R Z ngy'L 4 and Other senior staff is dit d in the following categy

Short-term employee benefits include amounts such as wages, salanies, annual leave or sick leave that are usually paid or payable on a regular basis, as
well as non-monetary benefits such as allowances and free or subsidised goods or services.

Other long-term employee benefits include long service leave, other long senvice benefits or defermed comp
Post-employment benefits include pensions, and other retirement benefits paid or payable on a discrete basis when employment has ceased.
Termination benefits include termination of employment pay such as kapy
2025 2024
$000 $000
Total remuneration of key management personnel was as follows:
Short-term employee benefits 715 868
Other long-term employee benefits 18 17
Post-employment benefits 47 43
Total 780 728
The numbers of key management p whose fofal ration from Council and any related
entities, fall within the following bands: 2025 2024
No. No.
S0 - $9,900 3 -
$10,000 - $19.620 3 -
$20,000 - $20.600 2 5
$50,000 - $50,600 1 1
$60,000 - 560,200 1 1
$70,000 - 579,220 - -
$00,000 - $02.000 - -
$190,000 - $199,900 1 1
$280,000 - $220,900 - 1
$330,000 - $230,900 1 -
12 a

In accordance with accounting standards, the remuneration amounts include wages and salanes, employer
superannuation contributicns, vehicle benefits and movements in unused leave.
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(d) Remuneration of other senior staff

Other senior staff are officers of Council, other than Key Management Personnel, whose total remuneration exceeds $170,000 and who report directly to a
member of the KMP.

Total remuneration of other senior staff was as follows:
Short-term employee benefits -
Other long-term employee benefits -
Post-employment benefits - 17
Total -

The number of other senior staff are shown below in their relevant income bands:

Income Range: No.
$170,000 - $179,900 - 1

Total remuneration for the reporting year for other senicr staff included above, amounted to: - 175

2024
7.2 Related party disclosure $000 $°000
(a) Transactions with related parties
mmmmmmmmmmmmmmm
relationships on terms and conditions no more fay ble than those in similar arm's length
deaings.

Locksmith, engraving and site camera installation services supplied to Council by a business that is a
related party of a former Councillor.

mmammbmammwwamm“
related party of a Councilor. 5 2

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties
The follow I are ding at the end of the reporting period in relation fo transactions with
rel&dpaies = =

(c) Loans toffrom related parties
The aggregate amount of loans in existence at balance date that have been made, guaranteed or secured
by the council o a related party are as follows:

(d)(:umimulsﬂiumn&dpzis
The aggregate amount i at balance date that have been made, guaranteed or 2 =
seuledbyﬂlemleibam&dpatynablws.
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Note 8 MANAGING UNCERTAINTIES
8.1 Contingent assets and liabilities

Contingent assets and conting iablibesarenolreeomsedn(heBalmeeSheet.btna'eclisdosedandlfq.lantiablearemeasu’edatnomml

value. Contingent assets and liabilities are p ted inclusive of GST ivable or payabl = y
(a)Conhngentasse(s
assets are possible assets that arise from past events, whose exists will be firmed only by the or of

mummceﬂmfuh:eevmtsrmwlywiﬁinﬂvemdhemm\el
At balance date the Council are not aware of any contingent assets.

(b) Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are:

- possible obligations that arise from past events, whose exi will be confirmed only by the or of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Counci; or
p:eseMobigaﬁmshs!anseﬁompastevemsbu(arenu!mcogmsedbeeuse

- itis not probable that an outfiow of ic benefits will be required to settie the obligation; or
-the it of the oblig. be *wﬂhstﬁaerlreiabli!y
Superannuation
(:om@llhﬂsobiga‘lmn'_'~.um‘lera‘z d benefit i h that may result in the need to make additional ibutions to the sch
g to this p obwahonarewﬂmedbelw As a result of the volatility in financial markets the likelihood of making such
mfuhne iods exists.
Gravel pits
Comuloperaﬁesammberofgmvelms Council will have to carry out site rehabilitation works in the future. At balance date Council is unable to
tely the fi plications of such works.

Y

Liability Mutual Insurance

Council is a parficipant of the MAV Liability Mutual | (LMI) Sch The LMI sch provides public liability and professional indemnity
insurance cover. The LMI scheme states that each participant will remain liable to make further contrib to the sch in respect of any
nsumeeyaarnmnwasapamcpamtoheextenioflspmm’sshareofuwshorﬂalmmpmwsnonseiascdenrespectofhat
insurance year, and such liability will conts vhether or not the p i a partici in future i years.

8.2 Change in accounlmg standards

Certain new A li g Standards and i ions have been published that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2025 reporting
period. CoundassessesmernpactofthesenewMar!S.Asnt30.hm20259\emwaemmwaeewmngMudsumwmlssued
by(heMSBlvhldlxeapplleableforheyeareming%JmeMSMueemedbdbmpﬂdend

In September 2024 the A i g Standard! Boud(AASB)ssuedMA«.mIm Susta:mbﬁlﬂyRepofh'lgSh\dacds(ASRS) This
MauedCommonmlhleguslahmestablshlm stainability rting fr. entities will be required to undertake
y reporting of cli nluu'eﬁnanualyears Plbicsector pplication issues in under ideration and Council
will continue to itor devel ts and p plications for future fi ial years.
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8.3 Financial instruments
(a) Objectives and poheles

The C i#s principal fi —— - pei " i term degiasit jvables (excluding statutory R b Juding
tutory payabl )andbanl(‘ ings. Details of the material ting policy inf tion and methods adopted, i thecnﬁemfor

recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which i and exp are gnised, in Spe ‘ofeachdassofﬁnaneldasset.

financial liability and equity instrument is disclosed in the notes of the fi ial stat ts. Risk g tis ied out by senior management

under policies approved by the Council. These policies include identification and lysis of the risk exp to Council and appropriate
procedures, controls and risk minimisation.

(b) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of il i ial inst ts will fluctuate b of changes in market prices. The
Council's exp to market risk is primarily through int t rate risk with only insignificant exposure to other price risks and no exposure to foreign
currency risk.
Interest rate risk
Inherestraiznskrefetshlhenskha‘lﬂ\evalueofaﬁ\anenlmsﬁumelﬂorcashﬁows iated with the i t will fluctuate due to chang

rket i rates. C il's i mtellabilyrlskansesprmmlyﬁunlongtennlnensmdbonwngsatﬁmdra&smiehexposesml
tnfﬂrvaluelmerestmtend( Council does not hold any interest bearing fi | instry ts that are d at fair value, and therefore has no
expombfanrvahemfestratersk Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash fiows of a financial instrument will fluctuate

of changes in market interest rates. Council has minimal exposure to cash flow interest rate risk through its cash and deposits that are at

floating rates.

Investment of surplus funds is made with approved financial institutions under the Local Government Acf 2020 . Council manages interest rate risk
by adopting an invest t policy that

- diversification of investment product;
- monitoring of retun on investment; and
- benchmarking of and ison with bud;

Kl P '

There has been no significant change in the Council's exp or its objects policies and
methods used fo measure this risk from the previous reporting period.

for t rate risk or the

P gingd

Interest rate movements have not been sufficiently significant during the year to have an impact on the Council's year end resuit.

{c) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a contracting entity will not complete its obligations under a financial instrument and cause Council fo make a financial

loss. Council have exposure to credit risk on some financial assets included in the bal sheet. Particularly significant areas of credit risk exist in

relation to outstanding fees and fines as well as loans and ivables from sporting clubs and iati To help ge this risk:

- council have a policy for establishing credit limits for the entities council deal with;

- il may requi where appropri and

- il only invest lus funds with fi ial institutions which have a recognised credit rating specified in council's investment policy.

Receivabl ist of a large ber of d across the ratepayer, busi and g nt Credit risk iated with the
il's fi ial assets is minimal b ﬂ}emmndebbnrs d by a charge over the rateable property

There are no material financial assets which are individually determined to be impaired.

Council may also be subject to credit risk for transactions which are not included in the balance sheet, such as when il provide a for
another party. Details of our contingent liabilities are disclosed in Note 8.1(b).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date to ised fi ial assets is the carrying amount, net of any allowance for

impairment of those assets, as disclosed in the balance sheet and notes fo the financial statements. Council does not hold any collateral.
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(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk includes the risk that, as a result of Council's operational liquidity requirements, it will not have sufficient funds fo settie a fransaction
when required or will be forced to sell a financial asset at below value or may be unable to settie or recover a financial asset.
To help reduce these risks Council:

- have a liquidity policy which targets a mini and ge level of cash and cash equivalents to be maintained:

- have readily accessible standby facilities and other funding arrangements in place;

-havealquﬂyponfoio—‘ ture that requi lus funds to be invested within various bands of liquid instruments;

- itor budget to actual p on a regular basis; and

-setinilson ings relating to the p tage of loans fo rate and p tage of loan principal repay ts to rate

The C if's to liquidity risk is the carrying amounts of financial liabilities as disclosed on the face of the balance sheet, and is
deemedmgmﬁcantbasedonmor jods’ data and nt t of risk.

There has been no significant change in Councif's exp or its objecti policies and p for ing liquidity risk or the methods used
to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.

With the tion of b i all fi ial kabilities are expected to be settled within normal terms of trade. Details of the maturity profile for

borrowings are disclosed at Note 5.4.

Unless otherwise stated, the camying nts of fil ial instn ts reflect their fair value.

(e) Sensitivity disclosure analysis

Taking into t past perfe future exp o ic fo sts, and t's knowledge and
rkets, Council beli the followi nts are 'ri bl ible’ over the next 12 months:

- A parallel shift of + 2% and - 2%mmarketmere§mteﬂAUD)fmnyear-endmﬁud385%

These movements will not have a material impact on the valuation of C il's fin | assets and liabilities, nor will they have a material impact on

the results of Council’'s ocperations.

8.4 Fair value measurement

Fair value hierarchy
Council’s financial assets and liabilities are not valued in accordance with the fair value hi hy, Council's fi ial assets and habilities are
measured at amortised cost.
Comalnnesweswhmassetsutdhabibesaﬁatvaknwhemmqwedupermﬁedby tralian A ting Standards. AASB 13 Fair value
nt, aims to impr y and red P ,by, idil adehmmoﬁwvahveandasmglesweedhrvahe
nt and discl qui “forusem:mss‘ li ing Star
Council has i d the dments to AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement that apply for the 2024-25 financial year as a result of AASB 2022-
10A d ts to A A ting Star ds - Fair Value Measurement of Non-Financial Assets of Not-for-Profit Public Sector Entities. For
assets.whereihecomeiadoptsa it repl, t cost ch to determine fair value, the Council now considers the inclusion of site
costs, disruptis eostsandcodstoresb«emoﬂberenﬁfsassetsnﬂwm‘deﬂyngvaluaﬁm
TheAASB13 apply prospectively p fig have not been restated.

Gwmthatpvopeﬂymdnfrasﬁucﬁleassetshavebeenrevahedasal1.My2024u5ngaduﬁererdmdependentvaluaﬁmexpedﬁmmeprevnus
valuation, Council has been unable to reliably quantify what pi of result from the initial application of the AASB 13
amendments, distinct from other valuation movements. In addition, Council does not have data available to quantify the portion of the fair value of
property and infrastructure assets at 1 July 2024 attributable to disruption of other entities' assets.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is d or disclosed in the fi ial statements are categorised within a fair value hierarchy,
desctibedasfolbws.basedonmebwes(level|mﬂﬂ\ahssmnﬁearlbhefarvaluemasmemeniasamoie

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable;
and

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, Council has determined classes of assets and habilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks
of the asset or iability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

In addition, Council it shether transfers have d bety levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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Revaluation
Subsequen‘lbiheni:dmeoglmnofassets.mn—msﬂphyscdassets.omerﬂnnplwmdequpmem uemeasuedaﬂherialvalue being
the price that would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a Eability) in an orderly tra P at the
measurement date. For plant and equip carrying is idered to approximat ﬁvalm@mstfdimAAtMmmh.m

Council reviewed the carrying value of the individual classes of assets measured at fair value to ensure that each asset materially approximated its
fair value. Where the carrying value materially differed from the fair value at balance date, the class of asset was revalued.

Fair value valuati determined in d. with a valuati i y. Changes to the valuation hi hy will only occur if an external
ehangemlhereshdmnsorllmdahmsduseofmasseimsultm‘ ges to the permissible or practical highest and best use of the asset. In
addition, Council a formal luation of land, buildings, and infrastructure assets on a regular basis ranging from 2 to 5 years.
The valuation is performed either by experi d il officers or independent experts. The following table sets out the frequency of revaluations
by asset class.
Revaluation

3 to 5 years

2 to 3 years

2to 3 years

2 to 3 years

2to 3 years

2 to 3 years

2to 3 years

2 to 3 years
Where the assets are lued, the luation i are credited directly to the asset luati reserveeneepthheexﬁemﬂw!anwease
massammrdmhhddassdasse&ﬂntlmdbeenmcomsedasanexpensemwhlehcaseme is d as
up to the it of the exp: are gnised as an exp eweptvd'terepmrnaeasesuelrﬂldedlnﬂ\easset
revaluation msewebfmatdassofassetnwheheaseﬂ\edeaeaseshkentomeresewebheexiemdhemmamgnmses Within the
same class of assets, | and d within the year are offset.
Impaimment of assets
At each reporting date, the Council reviews the carmrying value of its assets to determine whether there is any indication that these assets have been
impaired. If such an & tion exists, the bl ‘ofiheassetbeingﬁ\ehiqherofheassefsfﬂ'rvaiueIsseostsofdisposdandvalue
in use, lscompaledtolheasseteanyngvalue Any excess of the assets carrying value over its bl tis exp d to the

t, unless the asset is carried at the revalued amount in which case, the impai it loss is gnised directl

,"‘ihe i lus in oﬂhesamedassofassetbtheexterﬂha‘lmempamnentlossdnesnukexeeedmemournnme

revaluation surplus for that same elass of asset.

8.5 Events occurring after balance date
No matters have d after bal date that require discl in the financial report.
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Note 9 OTHER MATTERS
~—  Balanceat _________ Balanceatend
beginning of Increase of reporting
9.1 Reserves reporting period (decrease) period
(a) Asset revaluation reserves $°000 $'000 $'000
2025
Artworks
Artworks 1,255 - 1,255
1,255 - 1,255
Property
Land and land improvements 14,509 28,408 42917
Buildings 36,254 36,749 73,003
50,763 65,157 115,920
Infrastructure
Roads 128,352 44 689 173,041
Bridges 20,399 17,547 37,946
Footpaths and cycleways 6,034 3,116 9,150
Drainage 1,320 _(265) 1,055
156,105 65,087 221,192
Total asset revaluation reserves 208,123 130,244 338,367
2024
Artworks
Artworks 1,255 5 1,255
1,255 z 1,255
Property
Land 14,509 E 14,509
Buildings 33,898 2356 36,254
48,407 2,356 50,763
Infrastructure
Roads 123,429 4923 128,352
Bridges 19,720 679 20,399
Footpaths and cycleways 5,871 163 6,034
Drainage _1,101 219 1,320
150,121 5,984 156,105
Total asset revaluation reserves 199,783 8,340

The asset revaluation reserve is used to record the increased (net) value of Council's assets over time.
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ance [ance at en
beginning of accumulated accumulated of reporting
reporting period surplus surplus period
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
(b) Other reserves
2025
Capital works and projects 2,580 8,921 (2,580) 8,921
Recreational land 213 57 (165) 105
Building capital 4958 - (1,000) 3,958
Environmental projects 95 - - 95
Waste management 518 - (307) 211
Total Other reserves 8,364 8,978 (4,052) 13,290
2024
Capital works and projects 14,780 2,580 (14,780) 2,580
Recreational land 165 43 - 213
Building capital 4958 - - 4958
Environmental projects 95 - - 95
Waste management 518 - - 518
Total Other reserves 20,516 2,628 (14,780) 8,364

Description of the nature and purpose of each reserve:

Capital works and projects — specific purpose reserve used to fund major capital works projects.

Recreational land — specific purpose reserve used to fund public open space works.
Building capital — specific purpose reserve used to fund major building capital works.

Environmental projects — specific purpose reserve used to fund innovative environmental projects.
Waste management — specific purpose reserve used to fund works at waste management facilities.
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2025 2024
9.2 Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities to surplus/(deficit) $'000 $'000
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 1,157 (6,626)
Non-cash adjustments:
Depreciation 11,452 9,927
Profit/(loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 388 (23)
Fair value adjustments for investment property (1,080) (46)
Borrowing costs 6 44
Lease interest 100 35
Share of net profits (or loss) of joint ventures (29) 29
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables 2,147 (701)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories - 3
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments 360 (345)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 1,333 (741)
Increase/(decrease) in trust funds and deposits 12 2
Increase/(decrease) in contract and other liabilities 5,965 304
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 8_4 19_(1_
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 21,875 2,048
9.3 Superannuation

Council makes the majority of its employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees to the Local Authorities Superannuation
Fund (the Fund). This Fund has two categories of membership, accumutation and defined benefit, each of which is funded differently.
Obligations for contributions to the Fund are recognised as an expense in the Comprehensive Income Statement when they are made or
due.

Accumulation

The Fund's accumulation category, Vision MySuper/Vision Super Saver, receives both employer and employee contributions on a
progressive basis. Employer contributions are normally based on a fixed percentage of employee earnings (for the year ended 30 June
2025, this was 11.5% as required under Superannuation Guarantee (SG) legislation (2024: 11.0%)).

Defined Benefit
Council does not use defined benefit accounting for its defined benefit obligations under the Fund’s Defined Benefit category. This is
because the Fund's Defined Benefit category is a pooled multi-employer sponsored plan.

There is no proportional split of the defined benefit liabilities, assets or costs between the participating employers as the defined benefit
obligation is a floating obligation between the participating employers and the only time that the aggregate obligation is allocated to specific
employers is when a call is made. As a result, the level of participation of Council in the Fund cannot be measured as a percentage
compared with other participating employers. Therefore, the Fund Actuary is unable fo allocate benefit liabilities, assets and costs between
employers for the purposes of AASB 119.

Funding arrangements
Council makes employer contributions to the Defined Benefit category of the Fund at rates determined by the Trustee on the advice of the
Fund Actuary.

As at 30 June 2024, an interim actuarial investigation was held as the Fund provides lifetime pensions in the Defined Benefit category.

The vested benefit index (VBI) of the Defined Benefit category as at 30 June 2024 (of which Council is a contributing employer) was
105.4%. The financial assumptions used to calculate the \VBI were:

Net investment returns 567% pa
Salary information 3.5% pa
Price inflation (CPl) 2.7% pa
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As at 30 June 2025, an interim actuarial investigation is underway as the Fund provides lifetime pensions in the Defined Benefit category. It
is expected to be completed by 31 October 2025.

Vision Super has advised that the VBI at 30 June 2025 was 110.5%. Council was notified of the 30 June 2025 VBI during August 2025
(2024: August 2024). The financial assumptions used to calculate this VBl were

Net investment returns 5.7% pa
Salary information 3.5% pa
Price inflation (CP1) 2.6% pa

The VBI is used as the primary funding indicator. Because the VBI was above 100%, the 30 June 2024 actuarial investigation determined
the Defined Benefit category was in a satisfactory financial position and that no change was necessary to the Defined Benefit category's
funding arrangements from prior years.

Employer contributions

(a) Regular contributions

On the basis of the results of the 2024 interim actuarial investigation conducted by the Fund Actuary, Council makes employer contributions
to the Fund’s Defined Benefit category at rates determined by the Fund's Trustee. For the year ended 30 June 2025, this rate was 11.5% of
members' salaries (11.0% in 2023/24). This rate is expected to increase in line with any increases in the SG contribution rate and was
reviewed as part of the 30 June 2023 triennial valuation.

In addition, Council reimburses the Fund to cover the excess of the benefits paid as a consequence of retrenchment above the funded
resignation or retirement benefit.

(b) Funding calls

If the Defined Benefit category is in an unsatisfactory financial position at an actuarial investigation or the Defined Benefit category's VBI is
below its shortfall limit at any time other than the date of the actuarial investigation, the Defined Benefit category has a shortfall for the
purposes of SPS 160 and the Fund is required to put a plan in place so that the shortfall is fully funded within three years of the shorifall
occurring. The Fund monitors its VBI on a quarterly basis and the Fund has set its shorifall limit at 98% from 26 July 2024 (previously 97%).

In the event that the Fund Actuary determines that there is a shorifall based on the above requirement, the Fund's pariicipating employers
(including Council) are required to make an employer contribution to cover the shorifall.

Using the agreed methodology, the shortfall amount is apportioned between the participating employers based on the pre-1 July 1993 and
post-30 June 1993 service liabilities of the Fund’s Defined Benefit category, together with the employer’s payroll at 30 June 1993 and at the
date the shortfall has been calculated.

Due to the nature of the contractual obligations between the participating employers and the Fund, and that the Fund includes lifetime
pensioners and their reversionary beneficiaries, it is unlikely that the Fund will be wound up.

If there is a surplus in the Fund, the surplus cannot be retumed to the participating employers.

In the event that a participating employer is wound-up, the defined benefit obligations of that employer will be transferred to that employer's
SUCCESSOr.

The 2024 interim actuarial investigation surplus amounts
An actuarial investigation is conducted annually for the Defined Benefit category of which Council is a contributing employer. Generally, a

full actuarial investigation is conducted every three years and interim actuarial investigations are conducted for each intervening year. An
interim investigation was conducted as at 30 June 2024 while a full investigation was conducted as at 30 June 2023.

The Fund’s actuarial investigation identified the following for the Defined Benefit category of which Council is a contributing employer:

2024 2023
(Interim) (Triennial)
$m Sm
- A VBI Surplus 1084 847
- A total service liability surplus 1414 1236
- A discounted accrued benefits surplus 156.7 1419
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The VBI surplus means that the market value of the fund’s assets supporting the defined benefit obligations exceed the vested benefits that
the defined benefit members would have been entitied to if they had all exited on 30 June 2024.

The total service liability surplus means that the current value of the assets in the Fund's Defined Benefit category plus expected future
confributions exceeds the value of expected future benefits and expenses as at 30 June 2024.

The discounted accrued benefits surplus means that the current value of the assets in the Fund’s Defined Benefit category exceeds the
value of benefits payable in the future but accrued in respect of service to 30 June 2024.

The 2025 interim actuarial investigation
An interim actuarial investigation is being conducted for the Fund's position as at 30 June 2025 as the Fund provides lifetime pensions in the
Defined Benefit category.

Vision Super has advised that the VBI at 30 June 2025 was 110.5%. Council was notified of the 30 June 2025 VBI during August 2025
(2024: August 2024). The financial assumptions used to calculate the 30 June 2024 VBI were:

Net investment returns 5.7% pa
Salary information 3.5% pa
Price inflation (CP1) 2.6% pa

It is anticipated that this actuarial investigation will be completed by October 2025.

The 2023 triennial investigation
The last triennial actuarial investigation conducted prior to 30 June 2023 was at 30 June 2020. This actuarial investigation was completed by
31 December 2020. The financial assumptions for the purposes of that investigation was:

2023 2020
Triennial Triennial
investigation investigation
Net investment return 5.7% pa 56% pa
3.5% pa 2.5% pa for two
Salary inflation years and 2.75% pa
thereafter
Price inflation 2.8% pa 2.0% pa
Superannuation contributions
Contributions by Council (excluding any unfunded liability payments) to the above superannuation plans for the financial year ended 30 June
2025 are detailed below:
2025 2024
Scheme Type of Scheme Rate $'000 $'000
Vision super Defined benefits 115% 10 14
(2024:11.0%)
Vision super Accumulation 11.5% 717 676
(2024:11.0%)
Other super funds Accumulation 115% 541 473
(2024:11.0%)

There were no contributions cutstanding and no loans issued from or to the above schemes as at 30 June 2025.

The expected contributions to be paid to the Defined Benefit category of Vision Super for the year ending 30 June 2026 is $9,000.
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Note 10 CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

There have been no changes fo accounting policies in the 2024-25 year.

Note 11 ERRORS AND CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

11.1 Correction of error relating to previous reporting period - retrospective

During the revaluation of infrastructure assets Council found road earthworks assets that had not previously been reflected in previous
asset valuations. These found assets have been brought to account as an adjustment to Council's prior year asset balance comparatives
and to accumulated surplus for the 2023-24 year.

Adjustments to the comparative figures for the year ended 30 June 2024

Impact
Original Balance Increase/ Restated Balance
30 June 2024 (decrease) 30 June 2024
$'000 $'000 $'000
Balance Sheet
Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 308,261 201,144 509,405
Total non-current assets 311,658 201,144 512,802
Total assets 323,390 201,144 524,534
Net assets 314,613 201,144 515,757
Accumulated surplus 98,126 201,144 299,270
Total Equity 314,613 201,144 515,757
Note 6.1 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
Roads 183,046 201,144 384,190
Total infrastructure assets 222,045 201,144 423,189
Total Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 308,261 201,144 509,405
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Certification of the Performance Statement

In my opinion, the accompanying performance statement has been prepared in
accordance with the Local Government Act 2020 and the Local Government (Planning
and Reporting) Regulations 2020.

Karissa Hogan, BCom, CPA
Principal Accounting Officer
Dated:

In our opinion, the accompanying performance statement of the Ararat Rural City
Council for the year ended 30 June 2025 presents fairly the results of Council’s
performance in accordance with the Local Government Act 2020 and the Local
Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020.

The performance statement contains the relevant performance indicators, measures
and results in relation to service performance, financial performance and sustainable
capacity.

At the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances that would render any
particulars in the performance statement to be misleading or inaccurate.

We have been authorised by the Council and by the Local Government (Planning and
Reporting) Regulations 2020 to certify this performance statement in its final form.

Jo Armstrong
Councillor
Dated:

Bob Sanders
Councillor
Dated:

Dr Tim Harrison
Chief Executive Officer
Dated:
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Section 1. Description of municipality

Ararat Rural City is the gateway to the Grampians region in south-west Victoria, situated
at an important junction of the Western and Pyrenees highways 198 kilometres north-
west of Melbourne, approximately a quarter of the way between Melbourne and
Adelaide.

The land has a wealth of natural attractions that set the region apart, such as Mount
Langi Ghiran, Mount Cole and the Ararat Hills National Park, which frame our townships
with scenic views and unique landscapes.

It includes the city of Ararat and the rural townships of Buangor, ElImhurst, Lake Bolac,
Mininera, Moyston, Pomonal, Streatham, Tatyoon, Warrak, Westmere, Wickliffe and
Willaura.

Our diverse economy is fortified by advanced manufacturing, premium agriculture,
nature-based tourism, healthcare and renewable energy. The region is known for its
superior produce, wine production, agriculture and tourism. Diverse retail and
manufacturing industries are spearheading a growing economy.

Municipal Snapshot

Population » 11,686 (Australian Bureau of Statistics — Population Estimates by Local
Government Area)

Area » 4,211 square kilometres
Rateable properties » 7,447
Number of Councillors » 7

Rates and charges revenue » $18.093 million
Total revenue » $37.526 million

Length of sealed local roads » 759 kms
Length of unsealed local roads » 1,443 kms
Length of natural surface roads » 252 kms
Total road length » 2,454 kms
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Section 2. Service performance indicators

For the year ended 30 June 2025

Results
2022 2023 2024 2025
Target Comments
Actual | Actual | Actual | asper | Actual
Service / indicator | measure / [formula) ‘budget
Aquatic Facilities
Utilisation For the second year in a row, Council made the decision to make
Utilisation of aquatic facilities 265 3.05 491 400 567 | entry to all municipal outdoor pools free for the 2024/2025 season.
o 400 This, along with a warmer summer season, has seen visitor numbers
[Number of visits to aquatic facilities / to our pools continue to grow.
Municipal population]
Animal Management
Health and safety
Animal management prosecutions 0.00% | 100.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% | There were no animal management prosecutions during this
reporting period.
I of animal
prosecutions / Number of animal management
prosecutions] x 100
Food Safety
Health and safety
Critical and major non-compiiance outcome 83.33% 0.00% 100.00% | 100.00% | 100.00% | There was 1 major non-compliance issues for this reporting period,
notifications with this followed up with a compliant result in a timely manner.
of Gittical Council's Environmental Health service continues to work with
;louﬂmﬂons and major non-compliance ID:CANES v ds are met.
notifications about a food premises followed up
I Number of critical non-compliance outcome
notifications and major non-compliance
notifications about a food premises] x100
7
2022 2023 2024 2025
Target Comments
Actual | Actual | Actual | asper | Actual
Service / indicator | measure / [formula) 2 :
Governance Council set a target of 65 for community satisfaction with
Consultation and engagement Itation and 1it. Although failing to reach this, Council
with jon and 62 60 59 65 59 has maintained consistency with a result of 59, the same as the
engagement : pervious reporting period. This result has remained steady over the
last 3 years. Council is continuing its commitment to listening to and
[Community satisfaction rating out of 100 with addressing community concerns, and will continually set high
how council has performed on community performance targets in this space.
consultation and engagement]
Libraries This indicator is an assessment of the degree to which the
Participation o community participate in Council’s library service. Council's result of
Library membership N/A N/A 19.11% | 20.00% | 19.12% | 19.12% is reflective of a small rural Council and has remained
steady from the previous year. Following an interior upgrade in early
™ of regi library / 2025, Council is actively working to encourage new members and
Population] x100 borrowers with new and varied programs and membership drives.
Maternal and Child Health (MCH)
Participation Participation levels have slightly decreased on last reporting period,
Participation in the MCH service 85.53% | 84.87% 87.11% | 85.00% | 83.35% | with Council continuing to review practices within the
[Number of children who attend the MCH maternal and child health service to increase participation rates.
service at least once (in the year) / Number of
children enrolled in the MCH service] x100
Participation
Participation in the MCH service by Aboriginal | 87.50% 90.48% 89.47% | 85.00% | 87.10% | Participation levels remain steady amongst aboriginal children in the
children service. Low numbers in this indicator creates sensitivity when
= reporting in per ges, h d: in the prog
[Number of Aboriginal children who attend the stront
MCH service at least once (in the year) / confinentobe 9:
Number of Aboriginal children enrolled in the
MCH service] x100

11730



14 OCTOBER 2025
COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

G
<G

Ararat Rural City

2022 2023 2024 2025
: Comments
Actual Actual
Service / indicator [ measure / [formula)
Roads
Sealed local roads below the intervention level | 100.00% | 100.00% | 100.00% | 100.00% | 100.00% | Council has had no roads fall below the renewal intervention level
thls year. A proactive approach by Council's roads team has seen
[Number of kilometres of sealed local roads conducted regularly and pre-emptively, to ensure
below the renewal Intervention level set by sealed roads remain at condition standard.
Council / Kilometres of sealed local roads]
x100]
Statutory Planning
Service standard
= e COunciI has a target of 85% of applications decided in required
;xnlng within req 91.49% 80.41% 78.91% | 85.00% | 79.80% , with a 1t to improvement in this area.

e Although not quite meeting this target, a result of 79% has remained
[(Number of regular planning application steady with last year's result and well above state average for this
decisions made within 60 days) + (Number of indicator.

made
within 10 days) / Number of planning
| application decisions made] x100
Waste Management The amount of waste diverted from landfil has increased
Waste diversion - significantly this reporting period, due to it now being possible for
waste from landfil | 21.02% | 22.90% 2517% | 35.00% | 61.21% | Council to report on glass and green waste weights diverted from
landfill. Previous reporting only included recycling weights. This
[Weight of recyclables and green organics
ool from kerbside bins / Weight of reporting improvement has led to a much more accurate figure.
clables and green
collected from kerbside bns] x100
9
Section 3. Financial performance indicators
For the year ended 30 June 2025
2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 Material Variations and
Target Com
Dimension / indicator | Actual | Actual | Actual | asper | Actual | Forecast | Forecast | Forecast | Forecast ments
I measure | [formula] budget
Efficiency
Expenditure level , Expenditure in 2024/25 has
Expenses per property $4,064.44 | $4615.87 | $4,501.57 | $3,787.00 | $4,935.81 | $4,348.06 | $4,340.06 | $4,379.18 | $4,431.59 | increased as Council
assessment continues to deliver outcomes
for several large project
[Total expenses / Number grants, and to complete
of property assessments] projects carried forward from
the previous year. The
reduced indicator in the target
and future years is based on
minimal non-recurrent
operating grants being
received that would require
increased expenditure.
Revenue level [ o
Average rate per property | $2,028.33 | $2,006.30 | $1,992.70 | $1,997.00 | $2,001.88 | $2,046.60 | $2,077.10 | $2,108.05 | $2,139.43 | This indicator has remained
assessment : fairly consistent as Council has
delivered a 0% net rate rise for
[Sum of all general rates the seven years up to
ekl d“r;y““’ 2024/2025. Additionally, the
assessments] number of properties within
the municipality continues to
grow. The indicator is forecast
to increase in future years
based on annual rate
increases being included.
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2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 Material Variations and
Comments
Dimension / indicator | Actual Actual Actual Forecast | Forecast | Forecast | Forecast
I measure | [formula]
Liquidity
Working capital -
Current assets compared | 224.65% | 321.83% | 162.31% | 158.00% | 121.75% | 23533% | 241.79% | 260.15% | 282.81% | Current assets have increased
to current liabilities with $9.693 million in grant
funds received in June 2025.
[Current assets / Current However, unearned revenue
Sabiition] X100 has increased by $5.965
million with grant performance
obligations not yet satisfied.
Trade payables have also
increased by $1.33 million.
This indicator is forecast to
increase in future years when
unearned revenue is expected
to reduce upon completion of
the grant requirements.
1
2022 2023 2024 2925 2026 2027 2028 2029 Material Variations and
Dimension / indicator | Actual | Actual : Forecast | Forecast | Forecast Conmaots
I measure [ [formula]
Unrestricted cash
Unrestricted cash 64.66% 6443% | -12.98% | 145.00% | 34.50% | 163.87% | 173.70% | 19222% | 214.27% | Unrestricted cash has
compared to current increased since last year,
liabilities however the indicator is still
cash/ lower than the target and
Current iabilities] x100 future forecasts due to the
higher level of uneamed
revenue and trade payables at
year end. The forecast
indicators are based on
minimal unearned revenue
held as current liabilities in
future years.
Obligations
Loans and borrowings
Loans and borrowings 3.41% 7.07% 1.71% 0.90% 0.86% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% | Council has one loan which is
compared to rates due to be repaid in April 2026.
[Interest bearing loans
and borrowings / Rate
revenue] x100
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2022 2023 2024 n"“zozs 2026 2027 2028 2029 Material Variations and
Dimension / indicator | Actual Actual Actual | asper | Actual | Forecast | Forecast | Forecast | Forecast Comments
I 1 [formula] budget
Loans and borrowings 12.51% 1.20% 5.53% 0.90% 0.86% 0.86% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
repayments compared to The indicator is forecast to
rates reduce in future years as the
finterest and principal gznswlllberepddinAprI
on interest =
bearing loans and
borrowings / Rate
revenue] x100
Indebtedness .
Non-current liabilities 3.30% 5.47% 7.49% 4.60% 7.83% 3.87% 2.23% 1.34% 1.30% Council's own source revenue
compared to own source increased minimally with small
rovene increases resulting from
supplementary rates and a fair
&on"gmtﬁm f value adjustment for
%100 investment properties. The
non-current liabilities
increased with an additional
$0.312 million held in lease
liabilities. This indicator is
forecast to reduce in future
years based on Council’s lease
repayments reducing the level
of non-current liabilities in
future years. No further
borrowings or leases have
been factored into the forecast
indicators.
13
2022 2023 2024 : 2925 2026 2027 2028 2029 Material Variations and
‘Target Comments
Dimension / indicator Actual Actual Actual | asper Actual | Forecast | Forecast | Forecast | Forecast
/ 1 [formula) budget
Asset renewal and In 2022/2023 and 2023/2024
upgrade _ there was an increase in
Asset renewal and 174.50% 90.93% 124.63% m 100.75% 103.25% 106.48% 107.84% 107.84% | capital works expenditure,
upgrade compared to however there was also a
dapreciation higher proportion spent on
new assets. In 2024/2025 this
[Asset renewal and asset o has been adh |
upgrade expense / Asset affected by the significant 4
deprecistion] x100 increase in depreciation of
$1.311 million resulting from
property and infrastructure
asset revaluations. The target
included increased capital
grant funding for road
reconstructions, however
these projects have been
deferred until 2025/2026.
Operating position Expenditure increased in
justed underl, 2024/2025 to deliver the
:;uﬂ e outcomes for several large
Adjusted underlying 7.64% 206% | -4025% | 7.60% | -035% | 1.70% 3.10% 362% 3.63% | Project grants and works
surplus (or deficit) carried forward from the
previous year. Depreciation
[Adjusted underiying has increased by $1.311
surplus (deficit) / Adjusted million predominantly as a
underlying revenue] x100 result of asset revaluations.
The higher target reflected
$1.461 million in recurrent
capital grants, while the
forecasts are based on
minimal non-recurrent
operating grants.
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2022 2023 2024 _ 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 Material Variations and
: Comments
Dimension / indicator Actual Actual Actual Forecast | Forecast | Forecast me
! 1 [fe la]
Stability In 2023/2024 rate revenue
Rates concentration - represented a larger share of
Rates compared to 5520% | 5146% | 7382% | 59.20% | 49.39% | 56.09% 56.06% | 56.18% | 56.31% | Council'sincome despite a %0
net rate rise over the seven
revenue years to 2024/2025. Adjusted
underlying revenue decreased
[Rate revenue / Adjusted in 2023/2024 due to timing
underlying revenue] x100 hanges in fi BRI =
grants, with $6.656 million
being received in July 2024,
compared to $7.426 million
being received in advance in
June 2023. In 2024/2025
Council also received 50% of
the 2025/26 grant allocation in
advance. Targets and
forecasts are based on a single
annual allocation being
received.
Rates compared to 0.41% 0.29% 0.27% 0.30% 0.27% 0.28% 0.28% 0.28% 0.29% | Property values within the
property values municipality increased by
44.85% between 2021/2022
[Rate revenue / g;p‘ﬂl and 2022/2023, and have
eoved vmkle of- remained fairly consistent
”“””Wﬂfmm since that time. Additionally,
arichetlyl X Council has delivered a net
rate rise of 0% for the seven
years up to 2024/2025.
15
Section 4. Sustainable capacity indicators
For the year ended 30 June 2025
Results
Indicator | measure | [formula) 2022 2023 2024 2025 Cominients
Actual Actual Actual Actual
Population
pachaad of $2454.62 $2,868.75 $2,908.16 $3,145.39 Expenditure increased in 2024/2025 to deliver the
[Total ! outcomes for several large project grants, and works
" carried forward from the previous year. Depreciation
has increased by $1.311 million predominantly as a
result of asset revaluations. In 2021/2022 there was
significantly less non-recurrent expenditure compared
to recent years.
per head of municif
population $21,849.19 $23,628.31 $24,836.43 $50,762.88 | The significant increase in 2024/2025 has resulted
from a revaluation of property and infrastructure
(YRS Mk ucre Moy assets of $130.244 million and the inclusion of road
ropuistion] earthworks assets of $201.144 million.
Population density per length of road
4.86 478 477 476 This indicator has remained consistent to the previous
i ! of local year.
roads] )
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Indicator | measure | [formula]

2022

2023

2024

L
terminations / Average number of permanent
staff for the financial year] x100

Comments
Actual Actual Actual Actual

Own-source revenue

Ov per head of $1,623.47 $1,743.89 $1,770.52 $1,856.67 | Following a fair value assessment of Council's

population investment properties a revaluation adjustment was
included in revenue for $1.080 million, increasing

[Ow ! pel pop ] Council's own source revenue.

Recurrent grants

Recurrent grants per head of municipal $921.74 $916.70 $123.94 $1,138.80 | Recurrent grants were significantly lower in

population 2023/2024, due to a change in the timing of financial
assistance grants for 2024/2025 resulting in $6.656

[Recurrent grants / Municipal population] million being received early in July 2024, compared to
$7.426 million being received in advance in June
2023. In 2024/2025 Council also received 50% of the
annual allocation of the fi ial grants in
advance for 2025/2026.

Disadvantage

Relative Socio-Ec ic D 1.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 The Australian Bureau of Statistics revised Council's

R, , Socio-Economic Index for Areas (SEIFA) in 2022/2023

ex @ Socio-Economic with the municipality now considered to be less

Disadvantage by decile] disadvantaged than in prior years.

Workforce turnover

Percentage of staff turnover 16.8% 23.4% 7.6% 17.4% In 2024-25 there have been a number of
. I changes, including some redundanc

of staff and resulting in higher workforce turnover.
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Section 5. Notes to the accounts

5.1. Basis of preparation

Council is required to prepare and include a performance statement within its annual
report. The performance statement includes the results of the prescribed service
performance, financial performance and sustainable capacity indicators and measures
together with a description of the municipal district, an explanation of material variations
in the results and notes to the accounts. This statement has been prepared to meet the
requirements of the Local Government Act 2020 and Local Government (Planning and

Reporting) Regulations 2020.

Where applicable the results in the performance statement have been prepared on
accounting bases consistent with those reported in the Financial Statements. The other
results are based on information drawn from council information systems or from third
parties (e.g. Australian Bureau of Statistics or the Council’s satisfaction survey provider).

The performance statement presents the actual results for the current year and the
previous three years, along with the current year's target, if mandated by the Local
Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020. Additionally, for the prescribed
financial performance indicators and measures, the performance statement includes the
target budget for the current year and the results forecast for the period 2025-26 to
2028-29 from the Council's annual budget.

The Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020 requires explanation
of any material variations in the results contained in the performance statement. Council
has adopted materiality thresholds relevant to each indicator and measure and
explanations have not been provided for variations below the materiality thresholds
unless the variance is considered to be material because of its nature.
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5.2. Definitions
Key term Definition
Aboriginal children | means a child who is an Aboriginal person

Aboriginal person | has the same meaning as in the Aboriginal Heritage Act 2006

adjusted means total income other than:
> yogromnue * non-recurrent grants used to fund capital expenditure; and
* non-monetary asset contributions; and

*  contributions to fund capital expenditure from sources other than

those referred to above
adjusted means adjusted underlying revenue less total expenditure
underlying surplus
(or deficit)
annual report means an annual report prepared by a council under section 98 of the Act
asset renewal means expenditure on an existing asset or on replacing an existing asset that
expenditure returns the service capability of the asset to its original capability
asset upgrade means expenditure that— (a) enhances an existing asset to provide a higher
expenditure level of service; or (b) extends the life of the asset beyond its original life
critical non- means a notification received by council under section 19N(3) or (4) of the
compliance Food Act 1984 , or advice given to council by an authorised officer under that
outcome Act, of a deficiency that poses an immediate serious threat to public health
notification
current assets has the same meaning as in the Australian Accounting Standards

current liabilities has the same meaning as in the Australian Accounting Standards

food premises has the same meaning as in the Food Act 1984

intervention level means the level set for the condition of a road beyond which a council will not
allow the road to deteriorate and will need to intervene

local road means a sealed or unsealed road for which the council is the responsible road
authority under the Road Management Act 2004

major non- means a notification received by a council under section 19N(3) or (4) of the

compliance Food Act 1984, or advice given to council by an authorised officer under that

outcome Act, of a deficiency that does not pose an immediate serious threat to public

notification health but may do so if no remedial action is taken

MCH means the Maternal and Child Health Service provided by a council to support
the health and development of children within the municipality from birth until
school age

non-current assets | means all assets other than current assets

non-current means all liabilities other than current liabilities

liabilities

own-source means adjusted underlying revenue other than revenue that is not under the
revenue control of council (including government grants)

19
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Key term Definition

population means the resident population estimated by council

rate revenue means revenue from general rates, municipal charges, service rates and
service charges

relative socio- in relation to a municipal district, means the relative socio-economic

economic disadvantage, expressed as a decile for the relevant financial year, of the area

disadvantage in which the municipal district is located according to the Index of Relative

Socio-Economic Disadvantage of SEIFA

restricted cash means cash, cash equivalents and financial assets, within the meaning of the
Australian Accounting Standards, not available for use other than for a
purpose for which it is restricted, and includes cash to be used to fund capital
works expenditure from the previous financial year

SEIFA means the Socio-Economic Indexes for Areas published from time to time by
the Australian Bureau of Statistics on its Internet site

unrestricted cash means all cash and cash equivalents other than restricted cash

5.3. Other Matters
Overview of 2025

During the financial year Council has undertaken several significant projects including
completion of the Tatyoon Recreation Reserve upgrade, substantial re-sheeting of gravel
roads and continued the use of innovative Otta sealing to a number of rural and urban gravel
roads, an increased road sealing program, a significant interior upgrade to the Ararat Library,
bushfire emergency and recovery works, and establishment of a Child Friendly Cities and
Communities (CFCC) Working Group.
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Meeting closed at 6:08pm

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT PAGES 11666 - 11739 ARE CONFIRMED AND ARE A TRUE AND CORRECT
RECORD.

MAYOR - CR JO ARMSTRONG
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